Depression: Summary table of the psychometric properties of screening tools

Contents

Depression: Summary table of the psychometric properties of screening tools	1
Contents	1
Beck Depression Inventory (BDI)	1
Center for Epidemiological Studies-Depression Scale (CES-D)	12
Depression in the Medically Ill Scale (DMI)	
Distress Thermometer	17
General Health Questionnaire (GHQ)	17
Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS)	23
Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HADS)	
Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS)	
Major Depression Inventory (MDI)	
Montgomery-Asberg Depression Rating Scale (MADRS)	
Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ)	40
Single Question	48
Zung's Self-Rating Depression Scale	50
References to included studies	

Beck Depression Inventory (BDI)

Beck Depression In	ventory (BDI)									
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results						
Consultation										
Consultation Dutton 2004 Quality assessed: ++	BDI	DSM-IV	N=220, Age: 49 years Gender: 105 males, 115 females African American primary care patients Prevalence 63/220	MDD TP = 57 FP = 25 FN = 8 TN = 130						

Beck Depression Ir	ventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Laprise 1998 Quality assessed: +	BDI	DSM-III-R	N=66, age = 78 years, gender: 31 males, 35 females Nursing home residents, Canada (French) Prevalence: 27/66	BDI: Cut off 10 Sensitivity =0.963 Specificity = 0.462
Parker 2002 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory for Primary Care (BDI-PC)	DSM-IV (CIDI)	N= 302 outpatients from cardiology (29.5%), respiratory (23.2%), gastroenterology (11.6%). Nephrology (14.9%), haematology (7.9%), rheumatology (5.0%), radiation oncology (4.6%), endocrinology (3.3%) Mean age = 46.5 (SD = 12.9); 63.2% male 111 (36.8%) patients had chronic physical illness; mean duration = 9 years Australia, Sydney <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 14/160	Depression Cut-off ≥ 4 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.848 Sensitivity - 83.3% (62.2, 100) Specificity - 67.0% (57.4, 76.7) Optimal cut-off ≥ 5 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.848 Sensitivity - 83.3% (62.2, 100) Specificity - 75.8% (67.0, 84.6) Cut-off ≥ 6 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.848 Sensitivity - 66.7% (40.0, 90.3) Specificity - 82.4% (74.6, 90.2)

Beck Depression Ir	nventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Scheinthal 2001 Quality assessed: ++	BDI-Fast Screen	DSM-IV	N=75, Age: 74 years, Gender: 33 males, 42 females US geriatric medical setting Prevalence:8/75	Cut off 4 Sensitivity 1 Specificity 0.84
Whooley 1997 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory – 30 item Beck Depression Inventory – 13 item	DSM-III- Diagnostic Interview Schedule (DIS)	N = 543 Patients visiting urgent care clinic Mean age = 53 (S.D. 14) Male = 97% USA, San Francisco <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 97/536	Major depressionStandard cut off $\geq 10 - BDI-$ 30 itemAUC - 87% (82-91)Sensitivity -89% (81-95)Specificity -64% (59-68)Cut-off ≥ 5 BDI-13 itemAUC - 86% (82-90)Sensitivity -92% (85-97)Specificity -61% (56-66)

Beck Depression Ir	ventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Wilhelm 2004 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory (BDI)	DSM-IV	N= 212 medical out- and in- patients; 2.8% neurological disorders, 25.5% cardiopulmonary disease, 9.4% malignancy, 12.3% loss of mobility, 13.7% endocrine disorder, 3.8% infectious & inflammatory disorder, 12.3% renal disease, 20.2% other disease Age range = 16 – 91 y/o; 55.2% female <u>Prevalence of depression (major</u> <u>depression)</u> – 49/212	Major depression BDI AUC – 0.85 (79, 92) Sensitivity – 91% (73, 98) Specificity – 0.62 (0.55, 0.69) Any depression (major or minor) BDI AUC – 0.86 (80, 91) Sensitivity - 0.87 (0.75, 0.94) Specificity – 0.69 (0.62, 0.76) Affective disorder BDI AUC – 0.89 (84, 94) Sensitivity - 0.89 (0.77, 0.95) Specificity – 0.72 (0.64, 0.78)
Yeung 2002 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory – 21 item	DSM-III-R	N = 815; mean age = 50 years; 304 female, 199 male Chinese-American primary care patients; US Prevalence of depression – 53/180 Only those who screened positive on the BDI & agreed to be interviewed for DSM and a selective sample of those who screened negative on the BDI were interviewed with a DSM	Depression: major depressive disorder Cut off ≥ 16 Sensitivity - 79% Specificity - 91% PPV - 79% NPV - 91%

Beck Depression Ir	nventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Zich 1990 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory	DSM-III (Diagnostic Interview Schedule)	N = 31 primary care patients who completed both the BDI and DIS US, San Francisco [does not give demographic information specific to this sub-group of patients] <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 3/31	Depressive disorders Cut-off ≥ 10 - BDI Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 75% Cut-off ≥ 16 - BDI Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 89%
Physical health pro	hleme			
Watnick 2005 Quality assessed: +	BDI	DSM-IV	N=62, Age = 63 years, Gender: 42 males, 20 females Dialysis patients Prevalence: 12/62 (MDD)	MDD Cut-off 16 PPV= 0.59 NPV = 0.98 Sensitivity = 0.91 Specificity = 0.86
Craven 1988 Quality assessed: ++ Hedayati 2006 Quality assessed:	BDI BDI	DSM-III DSM-IV	N=99, Age = 51 years, gender: 63 males, 36 females Renal dialysis patients, Canada Prevalence: 12/99 N=98 age = 57 years, gender: 54 males, 44 females	Depression Cut-off 10 TP = 11 FP = 36 FN = 1 TN = 51 Depression Cut off 12
++	BDI	DSM-IV	Haemodialysis patients Prevalence = 26/98 N=100 Age = 50 years, Gender: 13 males, 87 females	Sensitivity = 65% Specificity = 72% Depression:
Berard 1998				
Berard 1998 Quality assessed: +			Cancer patients, South Africa Prevalence: 21/100	Cut off 14 Sensitivity: 0.90 Specificity 0.86

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

Beck Depression In	nventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
5			gender: 79 males, 35 females	cut-off 12
Quality assessed:				Sensitivity: 0.96 Specificity
+			Tourette's patients, UK	0.56
			Prevalence = $26/114$	
Leentjens 2000	Beck Depression	DSM-IV	N= 53; 100% Parkinson's	Depression
	Inventory (BDI)		Disease; mean age 67 y/o	
Quality assessed:			(SD= 10.5)	BDI
+				AUC - 0.857
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 12/53	Optimal cut-off ≥ 14– BDI
				Sensitivity – 67%
				Specificity – 88%
				PPV - 62%
				NPV - 90%
				Cut-off ≥7 – BDI
				Sensitivity –100%
				Specificity – 46%
				PPV - 35%
				NPV - 100%
				Cut-off ≥8 – BDI
				Sensitivity -100%
				Specificity – 54%
				PPV – 39%
				NPV - 96%
				Cut-off $\geq 9 - BDI$
				Sensitivity – 92%
				Specificity – 59%
				PPV - 39%
				NPV - 96%
				Cut-off $\geq 10 - BDI$
				Sensitivity – 75%
				Specificity – 63%
				PPV – 38% NPV – 90%
				Cut-off ≥ 11 - BDI
				Sensitivity – 75%
				Specificity – 71%
				PPV - 43%
				NPV - 91%
				Cut-off $\geq 12 - BDI$
				Sensitivity – 75%
				Specificity – 76%
				PPV - 47%
				NPV – 91%
				Cut-off ≥13 – BDI
				Sensitivity – 67%
				Specificity – 78%
				PPV - 47%
				NPV - 89%
				Cut-off ≥ 15 – BDI
				Sensitivity – 58%

entory (BDI)			
dentification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Beck Depression	Comparator DSM-IV	N= 227 women with stage IV	Specificity - 93% PPV - 70% NPV - 88% Cut-off \geq 16 - BDI Sensitivity - 50% Specificity - 93% PPV - 70% NPV - 88% Cut-off \geq 17 - BDI Sensitivity - 42% Specificity - 98% PPV - 83% NPV - 85% Any depression (major and
nventory – Short			minor)
orm (BDI-SF)		RCT; mean age = 52 y/o (SD = 9)	AUC = 0.82
		Australia <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 74/227	Cut-off ≥ 4 - BDI Sensitivity -84% Specificity - 63% PPV - 52% NPV - 89% Cut-off ≥ 5 - BDI Sensitivity -73% Specificity - 74% PPV - 58% Cut-off ≥ 6 - BDI Sensitivity -65% Specificity - 84% PPV - 66% NPV - 83% Cut-off ≥ 7 - BDI Sensitivity -47% Specificity - 86% PPV - 62% NPV - 77% Cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI Sensitivity -40% Specificity - 89% PPV - 64% NPV - 76% Major depression Cut-off ≥ 4 - BDI Sensitivity -100% Specificity - 52% PPV - 14%
r		nventory – Short	hventory – Short breast cancer involved in RCT; mean age = 52 y/o (SD = 9) Australia <u>Prevalence of depression</u> –

Beck Depression Ir	ventory (BDI)			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
Study		Comparator		Sensitivity -94% Specificity - 63% PPV - 16% NPV - 99% Cut-off ≥ 6 - BDI Sensitivity -75% Specificity - 71% PPV - 16% NPV - 97% Cut-off ≥ 7 - BDI Sensitivity -69% Specificity - 79% PPV - 20% NPV - 97% Cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI Sensitivity -62% Specificity - 82% PPV - 21%
Strik 2001 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory	DSM-IV (SCID-I)	N= 206 post myocardial infraction; 76.1% male Male – mean age = 59 (SD = 10.6); age range = 34 – 84	NPV – 97% Any depression (major or minor) Optimal cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI AUC – 0.84 Sensitivity 83.8%
			Female – mean age = 62.9 (SD = 10.7); age range = 38 – 78 <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 39/206	Specificity – 71.7% PPV – 25.3 NPV – 98.3
Golden 2007 Quality assessed: +	Beck Depression Inventory (BDI) Beck Depression Inventory-Short Form (BDI-FS)	DSM-IV (SCID-CV)	N = 88 outpatients at a hepatitis C service Male = 74% <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 25/88	Any depression BDI AUC - $0.87 (0.80-0.95)$ BDI-FS AUC - $0.85 (0.77-0.93)$ Cut-off $\geq 8 - BDI$ Sensitivity - $88\% (69-97)$ Specificity - $75\% (62-85)$ PPV - $58\% (41-74)$ NPV - $94\% (83-99)$ Cut-off $\geq 4 - BDI-FS$ Sensitivity - $84\% (64-95)$ Specificity - $67\% (54-78)$
Patterson 2006 Quality assessed:	Beck Depression Inventory - Cognitive-	DSM-IV (SCID)	N = 310 people with HIV infection	PPV - 50% (34-66) NPV - 91% (34-66) Major Depressive Disorder BDI-Cognitive-affective

Beck Depression Inventory (BDI)StudyIdentification toolComparatorPopulationResults+Affective subscaleMale = 88%AUC - 0.80 (S.E. 0.04)+SubscaleMean age = 39.7 (S.D. 9.0)Cut-off ≥ 10 - BDI- Cognitive-affective subsca Sensitivity - 61%Furlanetto 2005Beck Depression Inventory - ShortICD-10N = 155 patients admitted to adult medical wardsModerate and severe depression - Male = 47%Quality assessed: ++FormICD-10N = 155 patients admitted to adult medical wardsModerate and severe depression - Sensitivity - 100%Prevalence of depression Inventory - ShortICD-10N = 155 patients admitted to adult medical wardsModerate and severe depressive episodesMale = 47%Male = 47%MUC - 0.984 (0.97-1.00)Cut-off \geq 9 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 100%Prevalence of depression - 31/193Prevalence of depression - 31/193Prevalence of admitted to Sensitivity - 100%
+Affective subscaleMale = 88% Mean age = 39.7 (S.D. 9.0)subscale AUC - 0.80 (S.E. 0.04)+Mean age = 39.7 (S.D. 9.0)Cut-off \geq 10 - BDI- Cognitive-affective subsca Sensitivity - 61% Specificity - 80% PPV - 37% NPV - 91%Furlanetto 2005 Quality assessed: ++Beck Depression Inventory - Short FormICD-10N = 155 patients admitted to adult medical wardsModerate and severe depressive episodesMale = 47% Male = 47% BDI-FS AUC - 0.984 (0.97-1.00)Mean age = 49.5 (S.D. 17) Brazil, Rio de JaneiroModerate and severe depression - 31/193BDI-FS Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 82.3% PPV - 58.5% NPV - 82%
Specificity - 83.1% PPV - 59.6% NPV - 100% Cut-off ≥ 11 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 96.8% Specificity - 85.5% PPV - 62.5% NPV - 99.1% Cut-off ≥ 12 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 93.5% Specificity - 85.3% PPV - 69.0% NPV - 99.2% Cut-off ≥ 13 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 93.5% Specificity - 94.4% PPV - 85.3% NPV - 98.3% Cut-off ≥ 13 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 93.5% Specificity - 94.4% PPV - 85.3% NPV - 98.3% Cut-off ≥ 14 - BDI-FS Sensitivity - 93.5% Specificity - 96.0% PPV - 85.3%

Beck Depression Ir	ventory (BDI)					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results		
•						
Lincoln 2003	Beck Depression	DSM-III-R	N=143 who had a stroke, 52%	ICI	D-10	DSM-III-
	Inventory	/ICD-10	male, mean age 66 years (S.D.	R		
Quality assessed:	5	,	13.5)	Cut off ≥10	~ ~ ~ /	
+			,		93%	95%
			Prevalence of depression (DSM-	Specificity	24%	18%
			$\underline{II-R}$ = 21/143	Cut off ≥11		
			,		88%	95%
			Prevalence of depression (ICD-		28%	24%
			$\underline{10} = 12/143$	opeenieity	_0 /0	_1/0
				Cut off ≥12		
					85%	91%
				Specificity	37%	30%
				Cut off ≥13		
					83%	91%
				Specificity	44%	36%
				Crit off N14		
				Cut off ≥14 Sensitivity	75%	91%
					55%	48%
				Specificity	00 /0	4070
				Cut off ≥15		
					73%	91%
					56%	49%
				1 2		
				Cut off ≥16		
					70%	91%
				Specificity	63%	56%
				Cut off ≥17	(00)	-
					60%	76%
				Specificity	69%	62%
				Cut off ≥18		
					55%	71%
					73%	67%
					- /-	
				Cut off ≥19		
					47%	67%
				Specificity 2	79%	73%
				Cut off ≥20	10.0/	< 2 0/
					43%	62%
				Specificity 8	82%	77%
Hormonra 2000	PDI 21 Harry	ICD 10	N = 276, moon = 52 = 52	Dopression		
Hermanns 2006	BDI-21 item	ICD-10	N =376; mean age = 52 years;	Depression		
			148 women, 228 male	C-1-00 > 10		
				Cut off ≥ 10	00/	
Quality assessed:			Diabetes patients; Germany,	Sensitivity -80		
+			Merengentheim	Specificity – 8	1.4%	
				PPV - 43.4%		
			Prevalence of depression:	NPV - 97.4%		
			53/376	AUC - 0.80		
Aben 2002	BDI – 21 item	DSM-IV	N = 202 (N=171 completed	Depression: r		

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

ventory (BDI)			
Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
		BDI); mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 male Stroke patients; Netherlands, Maastricht Prevalence of major and minor depression – 51/202	depressive and minor disorder (also gives results from major depressive disorder only) Standard cut off ≥ 10 Sensitivity - 77.1% Specificity - 65.4% PPV - 37.5% NPV - 91.4% AUC - 0.79
	Γ	1	
Beck Depression Inventory – Short from (BDI - SF)	DSM-III-R (SCID)	N=177 community dwelling adults, over 55 years Mean age = 67.4 (SD=7.20yrs) Age range 56-88years 33% male <u>Prevalence of depression (any)</u> – 27/178	Any depression BDI AUC - $0.82(SE.06)$ Mild Depression Optimal cut-off \geq 5 - BDI-SF Sensitivity - 0.71 Specificity - 0.83 PPV - 74% Moderate Depression Optimal cut-off \geq 8 - BDI-SF Sensitivity - 0.59 Specificity - 0.93 PPV - 88% Severe Depression - Optimal cut-off \geq 16 - BDI-SF Sensitivity - 0.29 Specificity - 0.99
			PPV - 99%
Beck Depression Inventory- 13 item (BDI-13)	DSM-III-R	N=55 Mean age: 48 years Participants recruited from a wood factory <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 23/55	Depression Cut off 8/9 Sensitivity - 61% Specificity- 78% PPV - 67% NPV- 74% Standard cut off \geq 10 Sensitivity - 45% Specificity- 84% PPV - 67% NPV- 68% Cut off 10/11
	Identification tool Beck Depression Inventory - Short from (BDI - SF) Beck Depression Inventory-13	Identification toolComparatorIdentification toolIdentificationIdentification toolIdentificationIdentification toolIdentificationBeck Depression Inventory - Short from (BDI - SF)DSM-III-R (SCID)Identification (BDI - SF)IdentificationIdentification (BDI - SF)Identi	Identification toolComparatorPopulationBDI); mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 maleBDI); mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 maleBDI): mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 maleStroke patients; Netherlands, MaastrichtBeck Depression Inventory - Short from (BDI - SF)DSM-III-R (SCID)N=177 community dwelling adults, over 55 years Mean age = 67.4 (SD=7.20yrs) Age range 56-88years 33% malePrevalence of depression (any)- 27/178Prevalence of depression (any)- 27/178Beck Depression Inventory - 13 item (BDI-13)DSM-III-R N =55 Mean age: 48 years Participants recruited from a wood factory

Beck Depression	Beck Depression Inventory (BDI)					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results		
				Sensitivity - 39%		
				Specificity- 88%		
				PPV – 69%		
				NPV- 67%		

Center for Epidemiological Studies-Depression Scale (CES-D)

Center for Epidem Study	Identification tool		Population	Results
Consultation	fuentification tool	computation	ropulation	Results
Robison 2002 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	CIDI	N=303 Age = 61 years gender: 88 males, 215 females Primary care, Hispanic	Sensitivity = 0.73 Specificity = 0.72
0.1			population in US Prevalence: 67/303	2
Schein 1997 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	DSM-III-R	N=76, Age = 70 years Gender= 41 males, 35 females US, Medically ill inpatients	Depression Sensitivity 0.73 Specificity 0.84
			Prevalence: 26/76	Major Depression Sensitivity 0.90 Specificity 0.84
Thomas 2001	CES-D	DSM-IV	N= 179 women	Major depressive disorder
Quality assessed: +	CES D	DEM IV	Mean age: 44 years Participants were all low income women attending primary care clinics <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 9/179	AUC - 0.89 (SE = .209) Cut off ≥ 16 Sensitivity -95% Specificity -70% PPV - 28.4% NPV - 99.1% AUC - Cut off ≥ 34 Sensitivity -45% Specificity -95% PPV - 52.9% NPV - 93.2%
Watson 2004 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	DSM-IV	N = 84 Age over 70 and residing in two Continuing Care Retirement Communities in US. 26% male, mean age 82 <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 10/78	Major Depression CES-D Standard cut-off \geq 16 Sensitivity -60% (50, 70) Specificity -89% (82, 96) PPV - 43% NPV - 94%

Center for Epidemi	iological Studies-Depr	ession Scale (C	ES-D)	
Study		Comparator	Population	Results
		1	1	AUC - 0.0.88
				GDS-30 Alternative cut-offs
				Cut off ≥ 6
				Sensitivity – 100%
				Specificity - 54%
				1
				Cut off ≥ 7
				Sensitivity – 90%
				Specificity - 60%
				Cut off ≥ 8
				Sensitivity – 90%
				Specificity - 68%
				Cut off ≥ 9
				Sensitivity – 90%
				Specificity - 69%
				Cut off ≥ 10
				Sensitivity – 90%
				Specificity - 72%
				Cut off ≥ 11
				Sensitivity – 80%
				Specificity - 77%
				<u>Cut off \geq 12</u>
				Sensitivity – 80%
				Specificity - 78%
				ROC analysis – captured 80%
				of cases
				Cut off ≥ 13
				Sensitivity – 70%
				Specificity - 81%
				$C_{\rm rel} \sim 66 > 14$
				Cut off ≥ 14
				Sensitivity – 70%
				Specificity - 86%
				Cut off ≥ 15
				Sensitivity – 70%
				Specificity - 88%
				Cut off ≥ 16
				Sensitivity - 60% Specificity - 89%
				Specificity - 09 /0
				Cut off ≥ 17
				Sensitivity – 60%
				Specificity - 93%

Center for Epidem	iological Studies-Dep	pression Scale (C	CES-D)	
Study	Identification tool	``````````````````````````````````````	Population	Results
				Cut off \geq 18 Sensitivity - 50% Specificity - 97% Cut off \geq 21 Sensitivity - 40% Specificity - 99% Minor depression CES-D Standard cut-off \geq 16 Sensitivity -50% (39, 61) Specificity -86% (79.93) PPV - 21% NPV - 96% AUC - 0.72
Whooley 1997 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	DSM-III- Diagnostic Interview Schedule (DIS)	N = 543 Patients visiting urgent care clinic Mean age = 53 (S.D. 14)	Major depression Standard cut off \geq 16 – CES- D AUC – 89% (85-92) Sensitivity –93% (85-97) C – 10% (65–71)
			Male = 97% USA, San Francisco <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 97/536	Specificity -69% (65-74) Cut-off ≥ 10 -CES-D (10 item) AUC - 87% (83-91) Sensitivity -90% (82-95) Specificity -72% (67-76)
Williams 1999 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	DSM-IV	N=296 age: 59 years, gender: 77 males, 219 females Prevalence: 36/296	Depression Sensitivity 0.88 Specificity 0.75
Zich 1990 Quality assessed: +	CES-D	DSM-III (Diagnostic Interview Schedule)	US N = 31 primary care patients who completed both the BDI and DIS US, San Francisco	Depressive disorders Cut-off ≥ 16 – CES-D Sensitivity – 100% Specificity – 53%
Physical health pro	oblems		[does not give demographic information specific to this sub-group of patients] <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 3/31	
Parikh 1988	Center for	DSM-III	N=80, age = 58 years gender:	Depression
Quality assessed:	Epidemiological Studies- Depression Scale		40 males, 40 females Stroke patients	TP = 48 FP = 12 FN =8 TN = 112
<u> </u>	Depression Scale		outre parents	<u> </u>

±	iological Studies-Dep	· · · · · ·		Descrite
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results
	(CES-D)			
Hedayati 2006	CES-D	DSM-IV	N=98 age = 57 years, gender:	Depression
5			54 males, 44 females	Sensitivity = 73% Specificity =
Quality assessed:				76%
++			Haemodialysis patients	
			Prevalence = $26/98$	
McQuillan 2003	CES-D	DSM-IV	N= 415 Age = 58 years	Depression
			Gender: 71 males, 344 females	
Quality assessed:				Sensitivity 0.89 Specificity
+			US, Rheumatoid Arthritis	0.24
			Prevalence: 37/415	
McManus 2005	Center for	DSM-IV	N=1,024 who have CHD	Depression
	Epidemiological			
Quality assessed:	Studies-		Mean age = 67 years	<i>AUC</i> – 0.87 (0.84, 0.89)
+	Depression Scale			
	(CES-D) – 10		Men 82%	Cut off point ≥ 10
	items			Sensitivity – 76%
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> –	Specificity – 79%
77 1 . 1	CEC D		224/1024	
Kuptniratsaikul	CES-D	DSM-IV	N = 83; mean age = 33 years;	Depression: depressed mood
2002			66 male	or adjustment disorder
Quality accorded			Spinal cord injury patients:	Cut off ≥ 19
Quality assessed: +			Spinal cord injury patients; Thailand.	Sensitivity – 80.0%
1			Thanana.	Specificity – 69.8%
			Prevalence of depression:	PPV – 45.7%
			20/83	NPV – 91.7%
Hermanns 2006	CES-D	ICD-10	N =376; mean age = 52 years;	Depression
2000			148 women, 228 male	
Quality assessed:			110 Wonterly 22 0 Indie	Cut off ≥ 23
+			Diabetes patients; Germany,	Sensitivity – 79.2%
			Merengentheim	Specificity – 88.8%
			8	PPV - 53.8%
			Prevalence of depression:	NPV - 96.3%
			53/376	AUC - 0.85
Community		·		
Papassotiropoulo	CES-D	ICD-10	N = 287; mean age = 76 years;	Depression
s 1999			171 female, 116	
				Optimal cut-off ≥ 10
Quality assessed:			Older people from the	Sensitivity – 75%
+			community; Germany	Specificity – 72%
				AUC - 0.78
			<u>Prevalence of depression =</u>	
			10/287	
Suthers 2004	CES-D11	CIDI-SF	N = 1056 (used in table for	Depression
			analysis, 1284 included in	
Quality assessed:			study)	Standard cut-off 9

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

Center for Epidem	Center for Epidemiological Studies-Depression Scale (CES-D)				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results	
+			Community sample responding to telephone screen	Sensitivity – 48.1% Specificity – 88.27% PPV – 21.59% NPV – 96.20%	
			<u>Prevalence of depression =</u> 79/1256		
Tuuaninen 2001	Center for Epidemiological	DSM-IV	N=436 age: 68 years gender: all female	Usual cut-off (0.06)	
Quality assessed:	Studies-			Sensitivity = 74%	
+	Depression Scale (CES-D) –		Prevalence: 30/436	Specificity = 87%	
	Burnham Screen		US		
Wada 2007 Quality assessed:	CES-D	DSM-IV	N = 2219; mean age = 42 years; 351 women, 1868 male	Depression: major depressive disorder	
+			Community sample (workers in a company); Japan	Standard cut off ≥ 16 Sensitivity – 95.1% Specificity – 85.0%	
			Prevalence of depression: 49/2219	PPV - 10.7% NPV - 99.9% AUC - 0.96	

Depression in the Medically Ill Scale (DMI)

Depression in the	Depression in the medically ill				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results	
Physical health pro	oblems				
Hilton 2006 Quality assessed: +	DMI-10 DMI-18	CIDI	N=322, Mean age = 66 years, gender: 229 males, 93 females Coronary syndrome or heart failure Prevalence: 36/322	MDD DMI-10 Cut-off 6 Sensitivity = 0.80 Specificity = 0.70 DMI-18 Cut-off 14 Sensitivity = 0.756 Specificity = 0.773	
Wilhelm 2004 Quality assessed: +	DMI -10	DSM-IV	N= 212 medical out- and in- patients; 2.8% neurological disorders, 25.5% cardiopulmonary disease, 9.4% malignancy, 12.3% loss of mobility, 13.7% endocrine disorder, 3.8% infectious & inflammatory disorder, 12.3% renal disease, 20.2% other	Major depression DMI AUC – 0.85 (78, 91) Sensitivity – 87% (68, 95) Specificity – 66% (55, 69) Any depression (major or minor)	

disease	DMI
	AUC – 0.88 (83, 93)
Age range = $16 - 91 \text{ y/o}$;	Sensitivity - 0.87 (75, 94)
55.2% female	Specificity - 74 (67, 80)
Prevalence of depression (major	Affective disorder
depression) – 49/212	DMI
	AUC - 0.91 (87, 95)
	Sensitivity - 89% (77, 95)
	Specificity – 77% (70, 83)

Distress Thermometer

Distress Thermom	Distress Thermometer					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results		
Physical health pro	Physical health problems					
Akizuki 2003 Quality assessed:	Distress Thermometer	DSM-IV	N = 275; mean age = 52 years; 164 female, 111 male	Depression: major depression and adjustment disorder		
+			Cancer patients; Japan, Tokyo and Kashiwa	Standard cut off ≥ 5 Sensitivity – 84%		
			Prevalence of depression - 168/275	Specificity – 61% PPV – 35% NPV – 68%		
Akizuki 2005	Distress and Impact	DSM-IV	N = 295; mean age = 51; 164 female, 131 male	Depression: major depressive disorder		
Quality assessed: +	Thermometer		Cancer patients; Japan	Optimal cut off ≥ 5 on distress score & ≥ 4 on		
			Prevalence of major depression – 53/295	impact score Sensitivity – 89% Specificity – 70%		

General Health Questionnaire (GHQ)

Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results
Consultation		/ cusciless		
Hahn 2006 Quality assessed: +	General Health Questionnaire - 12 (GHQ-12)	CIDI (DSM- IV/ICD-10)	N = 204 chronically ill in- patients; 5.9% cardiovascular diseases, 8.8% orthopaedic diseases, 5.4% cancer, 18.6% endocrinologic disease, 53.4% pneumological disease	Affective disorder (single episode or recurrent major depression, dysthymia) Optimal cut-off ≥ 7 - GHQ AUC – 0.779 (0.716-0.834) Sensitivity – 77.1%
			Mean age = 49.6; age range 18-80	Specificity – 69.2% PPV – 34.2%

General Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results
Harter 2001	General Health Questionnaire -	M-CIDI	52% male 13 rehabilitation inpatient clinics in Germany <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 35/204 N=206	AUC = 0.65 (0.57, 0.72)
Quality assessed: +	12 (GHQ-12		Mean age = 48 years Neck and back pain (70%), arthropathies (14%), rheumatic disorders (6%), other musculoskeletal disorders (10%) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 10/206	Cut-off ≥ 5: Sensitivity – 75% Specificity – 51.7% PPV – 17.3%
Harter 2006 Quality assessed: +	General Health Questionnaire - 12 (GHQ-12)	M-CIDI	N= 569; 36% musculo-skeletal diseases; 29% CVD and 35% Cancer; 50% male; Mean age 54; Age range 22-83 <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 59/130	Any depression GHQ AUC - $0.72 (0.68, 0.76)$ Cut-off ≥ 8 GHQ Sensitivity - 52.5% Specificity - 77.9% PPV - 22.1%
Henkel 2004 Secondary paper Henkel 2003 - brief report Quality assessed: +	General Health Questionnaire 12 (GHQ-12)	CIDI – ICD- 10 (and DSM- IV research criteria for minor depression)	N = 448, of which 431 had an independent clinical diagnosis, mean age 48.98 Primary care patients <u>Prevalence of depression (any) -</u> 82/431 <u>Prevalence of depression (major)</u> <u>-</u> 50/431 <u>Prevalence of depression (dysthymia disorder) - 24/431 <u>Prevalence of depression (minor)</u> <u>-</u>54/431</u>	Any depression GHQ-12 Standard cut-off ≥2 Sensitivity - 85% Specificity - 63% PPV - 34% NPV - 95% Any depression according to ICD-10 GHQ-12 AUC - 0.833 Any depression according to ICD-10 including minor depression (per DSM-IV research criteria) GHQ-12 AUC - 0.817 Types of depression according to ICD-10 and

	General Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	.	Population	Results	
Study MaGPIe Group 2005 Quality assessed: +		CIDI	Population N = 775 1151 were selected for interview, with 788 completing interviews Prevalence of depression: 136/775	ResultsDSM-IV research criteria:Major depression AUC = 0.874 Dysthymia disorder AUC = 0.832 Minor depression AUC = 0.755 DepressionCut-off ≥ 3 Sensitivity = 66.3% Specificity = 71.8% PPV = 34.0% NPV = 90.7% Cut-off ≥ 4 Sensitivity = 59.9% Specificity = 80.5% PPV = 40.2% NPV = 90.2% Cut-off ≥ 5 Sensitivity = 53.5% 	
				Sensitivity - 53.5% Specificity - 85.1% PPV - 44.1% NPV - 89.3% Cut-off ≥ 6 Sensitivity - 43.9% Specificity - 89.4% PPV - 47.4% NPV - 87.9% Cut-off ≥ 7 Sensitivity - 38.2% Specificity - 92.5% PPV - 52.6%	
				Sensitivity -29.5%	

General Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results
Ibbotson 1994 Quality assessed: + Lincoln 2003 Quality assessed:	General Health Questionnaire 28 (GHQ 28) GHQ-28	DSM-III ICD-10 DSM-III-R	N=161 (no data for GHQ-28 on whole sample n=546) Disease free cancer patients, UK Prevalence 20/161 N=143; 100% stroke patients; 52% men; mean age 66 Y/O (SD 13.5)	Depression: Cut off 8 Sensitivity: 0.75 Specificity 0.92 Depression according to ICD-10
+			N= 20 patients recruited from hospital + 123 recruited from an RCT on CBT <u>Prevalence of depression (DSM- III-R)- 21/143</u> <u>Prevalence of depression (ICD- 10)- 12/143</u>	Optimal cut-off ≥ 8 - GHQ Sensitivity - 85% Specificity - 61% Depression according to DSM-II-R Optimal cut-off ≥ 12 - GHQ Sensitivity - 81% Specificity - 68%
Aydin 2001 Quality assessed: +	General Health Questionnaire - 12 (GHQ-12) Turkish version (validated)	CIDI	N= 157 males; Recently diagnosed TB (n=42), defaulted TB (n= 380, multi drug resistant TB (n=39), COPD (n=38) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 8/100	Depression Cut off 1/2 Sensitivity - 87.5% Specificity - 79.4% Cut off 2/3 Sensitivity - 87.5% Specificity - 94.1% Cut off 3/4 Sensitivity - 75% Specificity - 100% Cut off 5/6 Sensitivity - 75% Specificity - 100% Cut off 5/6 Sensitivity - 12.5% Specificity - 100% dTB Cut off 1/2 Sensitivity - 100% dTB Cut off 2/3 Sensitivity - 75% Specificity - 41.3% Cut off 2/3 Sensitivity - 75% Specificity - 63.3% Cut off 3/4

General Health Qu	General Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results	
		/		Sensitivity - 63.3%	
				Specificity – 80%	
				Cut off 4/5	
				Sensitivity – 20%	
				Specificity – 93.3%	
				Cut off 5/6	
				Sensitivity – 0%	
				Specificity – 93.3%	
				MdrTB	
				Cut off 1/2	
				Sensitivity – 100% Specificity – 41.3%	
				Specificity - 41.5 %	
				Cut off 2/3	
				Sensitivity – 100%	
				Specificity – 62.1%	
				Cut off 3/4	
				Sensitivity – 100%	
				Specificity – 79.3%	
				Cut off 4/5	
				Sensitivity – 70%	
				Specificity – 73.1%	
				Cut off 5/6	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity – 100%	
				COPD	
				<i>Cut off 1/2</i>	
				Sensitivity – 100% Specificity – 25%	
				PPV – 54.6%	
				NPV- 100%	
				Cut off 2/3	
				Sensitivity – 100%	
				Specificity – 40%	
				PPV – 60%	
				NPV-100%	
				Cut off 3/4	
				Sensitivity – 94.4%	
				Specificity – 55%	
				PPV - 65.4%	
				NPV- 91.7%	

General Health Qu	estionnaire			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results
				<i>Cut off 4/5</i> Sensitivity – 88.8% Specificity – 70% PPV – 72.7% NPV- 87.5% <i>Cut off 5/6</i> Sensitivity – 83.3% Specificity – 80% PPV – 78.9% NPV- 84.1%
Reuter 2000 Quality assessed: +	GHQ-12	DSM-IV	N=188, Mean age = 54 years, gender: 137 males, 51 females Cancer patients, Germany	Depression: Cut-off 2 Sensitivity = 0.93 Specificity = 0.49
Chatuverdi 1994 Quality assessed: +	GHQ-12	ICD-9	Prevalence: 14/188 N=100 age= 25-49 years, gender: all females Gynaecological patients, India	Depression Optimal cut-off Sensitivity: 1.00 Specificity: 0.78
			Prevalence: 36/100	
Picardi 2005 Quality assessed: +	GHQ-12	SCID	N=141, Age = 38 years, Gender: 62 males, 79 females Dermatology patients, Italy	Sensitivity = 0.73 Specificity = 0.78
_			Prevalence: 44/141 (any depression); 12/141 (MDD)	
Community Costa 2006 Quality assessed: +	GHQ-12	ICD-10	N=126 age = 81 years, gender: 36 males, 90 females Elderly people, Brazil Prevalence: 65/126	Sensitivity = 0.661 Specificity = 0.623
Papassotiropoulo s 1999 Quality assessed: +	GHQ-12	ICD-10	N = 287; mean age = 76 years; 171 female, 116 Older people from the community; Germany Prevalence of depression = 10/287	Depression Optimal cut off ≥ 4 Sensitivity – 63% Specificity – 91% AUC – 0.794

General Health Qu	General Health Questionnaire					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator / caseness	Population	Results		
Viinamaki 1995	General Health Questionnaire 12	DSM-III-R	N=56	Depression		
Quality assessed: +	(GHQ-12)		Mean age: 48 years	Cut off 2/3 Sensitivity - 70%		
			Employers from factory	Specificity- 75% PPV - 73%		
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 23/56	NPV- 72%		

Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS)

Geriatric Depressio	on Scale			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
Consultation				
Arthur1999	Geriatric Depression Scale	ICD-10 based on SCAN	N = 201	Depression
Quality assessed: +	Depression Scale - 15 item	on SCAN	All people aged over 75 in one large GP practice list undergoing a health check. Leicester, UK <i>Prevalence of depression 12/201</i> – 6%	Cut-off ≥2 Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 49.9% PPV - 11.2% NPV - 100.0% Cut-off ≥3 Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 71.9% PPV - 18.4% NPV - 100.0% Cut-off ≥4 Sensitivity - 80% Specificity - 81.6% PPV - 21.6% NPV - 98.5% Cut-off ≥5 Sensitivity - 60.0% Specificity - 89.2% PPV - 26.1% NPV - 97.2% Cut-off ≥6 Sensitivity - 50.0% Specificity - 93.7% PPV - 33.3%
				NPV - 96.7%
				Cut-off ≥7

Geriatric Depression	on Scale			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
				Sensitivity - 43.3% Specificity - 96.0% PPV - 40.6% NPV - 96.4%
Burke 1992 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale - 30 item	DSM-III-R	N = 67 cognitively intact outpatients Mean age = 77.2 (SD 6.5) Male = 34% <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 16/67	DepressionCut-off \geq 11Sensitivity - 81%Specificity - 61%Cut-off \geq 14Sensitivity - 44%Specificity - 75%Cut-off \geq 17Sensitivity - 31%Specificity - 94%
D'Ath 1994 Quality assessed: +	GDS-15	GMS	N=194, Age: 74 years, Gender: 126 females, 72 males Prevalence: 67/194	Specificity – 94% Depression Sensitivity 91% Specificity 72%
Fernandez-San Martin 2002 Quality assessed: +	GDS	DSM-IV	N=192 age >65 years, gender: 70 males, 122 females Primary care, Spain Prevalence: 60/192 (mainly psychotic depression)	Cut Off 11 Sensitivity = 0.817 Specificity = 0.68
Jongenelis 2005 Quality assessed: +	GDS	DSM-IV	N= 333, age = 79 years, gender: 104 males, 229 females Nursing home, Netherlands Prevalence: 74/333	Cut off 11 Sensitivity = 0.85 Specificity = 0.69
Koenig 1992 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale	DSM-III-R	N = 109 medically ill hospitalized patients Mean age = 74 (S.D. 4.1) 100% men Mean MMSE score = 25.7 (S.D. 3.3) US, Durham <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 11/109	Major depression Cut off ≥ 11 - GDS Sensitivity - 82% Specificity - 76% PPV - 27% NPV - 97%

Geriatric Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
Laprise 1998 Quality assessed: +	GDS	DSM-III-R	N=66, age = 78 years, gender: 31 males, 35 females Nursing home residents, Canada (French) <i>Prevalence: 27/66</i>	Cut off 10 Sensitivity = 0.92 Specificity = 0.513 BDI: Cut off 10 Sensitivity =0.963 Specificity = 0.462
Magni 1986 Quality assessed: ++	GDS	DSM-III	N = 220, age = 76 years, Gender: 111 males, 109 females Consecutive admissions to general medical ward, Italy <i>Prevalence of depression (MDD</i> <i>and dysthymia) – 67/220</i> <i>MDD only – 18/220</i>	Depression Cut off 11 Sensitivity = 0.86 Specificity = 0.74 Cut off 14 Sensitivity = 0.65 Specificity = 0.91
Neal 1994 Quality assessed: +	GDS GDS-15	DSM (GMS)	N=45, Age = 77years, Gender: 18 males, 27 females <i>Prevalence: 8/</i> 45	Depression GDS: Sensitivity 0.74 Specificity 0.80 GDS-15 Sensitivity 0.67 Specificity 0.80
Pomeroy 2001 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale -4 item scale (GDS - 4) Geriatric Depression Scale -15 item scale (GDS - 15) Geriatric Depression Scale -30 item scale (GDS - 30)	ICD-10	N = 87 patients over the age of 60 admitted to medical rehabilitation wards or attending day rehabilitation facilities; 40% male, mean age 78.4 (SD – 7.7 yrs) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 17/87	Depressive episode GDS-4 Optimal cut-off ≥ 1 Sensitivity - 82.4% Specificity - 67.1% AUC - 0.80 (0.68, 0.93) PPV - 37.8% NPV - 94.0% GDS-15 Optimal cut-off ≥ 5 Sensitivity - 82.4% Specificity - 60.0 AUC - 0.82 (0.71, 0.93) PPV - 33.3% NPV - 93.3% GDS-30 Optimal cut-off ≥ 11 Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 62.9% AUC - 0.85 (0.77, 0.94) PPV - 39.5%

Geriatric Depressio	Geriatric Depression Scale					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results		
		casciless		NPV - 100%		
Rinaldi 2003 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale - 15 item (GDS- 15) 5-item Geriatric Depression Scale (Hoyl1999) - (GDS-5)	DSM-IV	N= 181 Participants were 65yrs and older, with normal cognitive function enrolled from three settings: an acute geriatric ward (33%), a geriatric outpatient clinic (28%) and a nursing home (39%); mean age 79.4 (SD- 7.3yrs) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 87/181	Any depression GDS-15 Sensitivity – 0.92 (0.88, 0.96) Specificity – 0.83 (0.78, 0.88) PPV – 0.83 (0.78, 0.88) NPV – 0.92 (0.88, 0.96) AUC – 0.88 GDS-5 Sensitivity – 0.94 (0.91, 0.98) Specificity – 0.81 (0.75, 0.87) PPV – 0.81 (0.75, 0.87) NPV – 0.94 (0.90, 0.97) AUC – 0.85		
Scheinthal 2001 Quality assessed: ++	Geriatric Depression Scale - 15 item	DSM-IV	N=75, Age: 74 years, Gender: 33 males, 42 females US geriatric medical setting Prevalence:8/75	Cut off ≥7 Sensitivity 1 Specificity 0.79		
Van Marwijk 1995 Quality assessed: +	GDS - 30 item Also included GDS-15 and GDS-10	DSM-III	N=586 age = 65-94 years, gender: 237 males, 349 females Older people in primary care, Netherlands Prevalence: 33/586	Cut off 10 Sensitivity = 0.55 Specificity = 0.86		
Vargas 2007 Quality assessed: +	GDS	DSM-IV	N=484 age = 70 years, gender: 208 males, 276 females General Outpatient Clinic, Portugal Prevalence: 210/484	Cut off 12 Sensitivity = 0.87 Specificity = 0.73		
Watson 2004 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale - 30 item version (GDS-30)	DSM-IV	N = 84 Age over 70 and residing in two Continuing Care Retirement Communities in US. 26% male, mean age 82 <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 10/78	Major DepressionGDS-30Standard cut-off ≥ 12 Sensitivity -60% (50, 70)Specificity -93% (88, 98)PPV - 55%NPV - 95%AUC - 0.88		

Geriatric Depress	Geriatric Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
		Cascilless		GDS-30 Alternative cut-offs	
				Cut off ≥ 4	
				Sensitivity – 100%	
				Specificity - 42%	
				Cut off ≥ 5	
				Sensitivity – 90%	
				Specificity - 57%	
				Cut off ≥ 6	
				Sensitivity – 80%	
				Specificity - 68%	
				Cut off ≥ 7	
				Sensitivity – 80%	
				Specificity - 73%	
				Cut off ≥ 8	
				Sensitivity – 88%	
				Specificity - 77%	
				<u>Cut off ≥ 9</u>	
				Sensitivity – 80%	
				Specificity - 85%	
				ROC analysis – captured 80%	
				of cases	
				Cut off ≥ 10	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 88%	
				Cut off ≥ 11	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 89%	
				Cut off ≥ 12	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 93%	
				Cut off ≥ 13	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 97%	
				Cut off ≥ 14	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 99%	
				Cut off ≥ 16	
				Sensitivity – 60%	
				Specificity - 100%	

Geriatric Depressio	on Scale			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
				Minor depression GDS-30 Standard cut-off \geq 12 Sensitivity -33% (23, 43) Specificity -88% (81, 95) PPV - 18% NPV - 95% AUC - 0.71
Physical health pro				
Haworth 2007	GDS-15	DSM-IV (SCID)	N=88, Age = 70 years Gender: 73 males, 15 females	Depression
Quality assessed: +			Heart failure patients, US Prevalence: 22/88 depression	Cut off 5 (recommended and optimal) Sensitivity 81.8% Specificity 83.3% PPV 62.1% NPV 93.2%
Rovner 1997	GDS	DSM-IV	13/88 MDD N=70, Age = 77 years,	Depression
Quality assessed:	GDS	DSIVI-IV	Gender: 41 females, 29 males Prevalence: 27/70	Sensitivity = 63% Specificity = 77%
Tang 2004B Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS) - Chinese version	DSM-IV	N= 127 Chinese geriatric stroke patients; 53.5% male; mean age = 75.7 (SD = 6.2) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 8/100	Any depression Optimal cut-off \geq 7 AUC - 0.90 Sensitivity - 89% Specificity - 73% PPV - 37% NPV - 97%
Tang 2004A Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS) - 15 Chinese version	DSM-III-R	N = 60 Chinese patients received rehabilitation after stroke <u>Prevalence of depression =</u> 14/60	Any depression Optimal cut-off ≥ 6 AUC - 0.758 Sensitivity - 64% Specificity - 83% PPV - 53% NPV - 88%
Weintraub 2006 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS) -15 items	DSM-IV	N=148 with idiopathic PD receiving specialist care Mean age = 71 years MMSE = 27	AUC - 0.92 (0.87, 0.93) Cut-off 1/2 Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 35% PPV - 30% NPV - 100% Cut-off 2/3 Sensitivity - 97% Specificity - 51% PPV - 35%

Geriatric Depressio	Geriatric Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
				NPV - 98% Cut-off 3/4 Sensitivity - 91% Specificity - 71% PPV - 46% NPV - 96% Cut-off 4/5 Sensitivity - 88% Specificity - 85% PPV - 61% NPV - 96% Cut-off 5/6 Sensitivity - 78% Specificity - 91% PPV - 69% NPV - 93% Cut-off 6/7 Sensitivity - 66% Specificity - 97% PPV - 84% NPV - 91% Cut-off 7/8 Sensitivity - 50% Specificity - 97% PPV - 84% NPV - 84% NPV - 88%	
Ertan 2005 Quality assessed: +	Geriatric Depression Scale - 30 item (Turkish version)	DSM-IV	N – 109 patients with Parkinson's Disease Male = 67% Mean age = 66.5; age range 29-84 Turkey, Istanbul <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 56/109	Depression Cut-off ≥ 10 Sensitivity - 89% Specificity - 62% PPV - 71% NPV - 84%	
Community					
Carrete 2001 Quality assessed: +	GDS	DSM-IV (SCID)	N= 169 Mean age = 72 years gender: 57 males, 112 female Ambulatory older adults were contacted by telephone, Argentina	Cut off 11 Sensitivity = 0.88 Specificity = 0.84	

Geriatric Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
			Prevalence: 22/169	
Costa 2006	GDS-30	ICD-10	N=126 age = 81 years, gender: 36 males, 90 females	GDS Sensitivity = 0.733
Quality assessed: +			Older adults, Brazil	Specificity = 0.654
			Prevalence: 65/126	
De Craen 2003	GDS-15	DSM-IV	N=79 median age = 87 years, gender: 24 males, 55 females	Cut off 3 TP = 7 FP = 17 FN =1 TN =54
Quality assessed: +			Community dwelling, Netherlands	
Rait 1999	GDS-15	DSM-IV	N=130, Age = >60 years, Gender: no information	Depression
Quality assessed:				Sensitivity 91%
+			Prevalence: 13/130	Specificity 72%

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HADS)

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
Consultation					
Hahn 2006	Hospital Anxiety	CIDI (DSM-	N = 204 chronically ill in-	Affective disorder (single	
	Depression Scale	IV/ICD-10)	patients; 5.9% cardiovascular	episode or recurrent major	
Quality assessed:			diseases, 8.8% orthopaedic	depression, dysthymia)	
+			diseases, 5.4% cancer, 18.6%		
			endocrinologic disease, 53.4%	Optimal cut-off \geq 18 – HADS	
			pneumological disease	AUC – 0.785 (0.722-0.839) Sensitivity – 71.4%	
			Mean age = 49.6; age range	Specificity – 74.6%	
			18-80	PPV - 36.8%	
			52% male		
			13 rehabilitation inpatient		
			clinics in Germany		
			Prevalence of depression –		
			35/204		
Harter 2001	Hospital Anxiety	M-CIDI	N=206	AUC = 0.79 (0.73, 0.85)	
	Depression Scale				
Quality assessed:			Mean age = 48 years	Cut-off ≥ 16:	
+				Sensitivity – 78.3%	
			Neck and back pain (70%),	Specificity – 70.6%	
			arthropathies (14%),	PPV - 28.6%	

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
			rheumatic disorders (6%), other musculoskeletal disorders (10%)	
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 10/206	
Harter 2006	Hospital Anxiety and Depression	M-CIDI	N= 569; 36% musculo-skeletal diseases; 29% CVD and 35%	Any depression
Quality assessed: +	Scale (HADS)		Cancer; 50% male; Mean age 54; Age range 22-83	HADS AUC – 0.82 (0.79, 0.86)
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 59/130	Cut-off \geq 18- HADS Sensitivity – 73.7% Specificity – 79.5% PPV – 30.7%
Herrero 2003 Quality assessed:	HADS	DSM-IV (SCID)	N=385, Mean age = 38 years, gender: 204 males, 181 females	Cut off 7 Sensitivity = 0.92 Specificity = 0.644
+			General Hospital – all participants were outpatients with severe medical pathology, from neurosurgery, pulmonary, cardiology, neurology and infectious illness settings, Spain	
L 1005		DSM-III-R	Prevalence: 87/385	
Lam 1995	HADS	DSM-III-K	N=100, age = 69 years, gender: 44 males, 56 females	Sensitivity = 0.78 Specificity = 0.91
Quality assessed: +			Elderly primary care patients, Hong Kong	
			Prevalence: 9/100	
Lowe 2004A Lowe2004B – duplicate report Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HADS)	DSM-IV (SCID)	N= 501; 21% musculo-skeletal disease, 16% endocrine, nutritional & metabolic disease, 10% cardiovascular/circulatory disease, 7% gastrointestinal disease, 6% respiratory system disease; mean age = 41.7 y/o (SD = 13.8); 32.9% male	Any depression Cut-off \geq 7- HADS Sensitivity - 86% (78, 91) Specificity - 70% (65, 74) Cut-off \geq 8- HADS Sensitivity - 81% (73, 87) Specificity - 75% (71, 80) Cut-off \geq 10- HADS Sensitivity - 75% (66, 82) Specificity - 82% (78, 86)
			395 outpatients from Heidelberg University Medical Hospital	Major depression
			•	Cut-off ≥8– HADS

Parker 2002 Hospital Anxiety and Depression + DSM-IV (CIDI) N=302 outpatients from cardiology (29.5%), respiratory (23.2%), gastroenterology (11.6%), Nephrology (14.9%), radiation oncology (4.6%), endocrinology (3.3%) DSM-IV (CIDI) N=302 outpatients from cardiology (29.5%), respiratory (23.2%), gastroenterology (11.6%), Nephrology (14.9%), radiation oncology (4.6%), endocrinology (3.3%) Depression Cut-off ≥ 2 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Year Mean age = 46.5 (SD = 12.9); 63.2% male Sensitivity - 50.0% (5.5, 32.4) Cut-off ≥ 6 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Year Mean age = 46.5 (SD = 12.9); 63.2% male Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Prevalence of depression + Till (36.8%) patients had chronic physical illness; mean duration = 9 years Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Prevalence of depression + Till (36.8%) patients had chronic physical illness; mean duration = 9 years Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Prevalence of depression + 14/160 Specificity - 50.9% (51.9, 79.9) Cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity - 76.4% (22.4, 99.4) Cut-off ≥ 1 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity - 76.9% (32.4, 99.4) Cut-off ≥ 1 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Upadhyaya1997 HADS GMS- AGECAT N = 72, attendees over 65years old at a medical Depression	Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale					
Parker 2002Hospital Anxiety and DepressionDSM-IV G6501N=302 outpatients from cardiology (29.5%), gastroenterology (11.6%). Sensitivity = 45% (85.8.96) Specificity = 76% (64.73) Cut-off 2-9 HADS Sensitivity = 45% (85.8.96) Specificity = 76% (64.73) Cut-off 2-9 HADS Sensitivity = 45% (85.8.96)Parker 2002 quality assessed: +Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HADS)DSM-IV (CID)N=302 outpatients from cardiology (29.5%), gastroenterology (11.6%). Nephrology (14.9%), haematology (7.9%), ratiation oncology (4.6%), endocrinology (3.3%)Depression Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 70.8% (55.3.2.4) Cut-off 2- BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 0.0% (35.2, 64.8) Cut-off 2- BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 50.0% (35.2, 64.8) Cut-off 2- BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 50.0% (35.2, 64.8) Cut-off 2- BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 50.0% (35.2, 64.8) Cut-off 2- BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (63.7 100) Cut-off 2 + BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (63.7 100) Specificity = 70.4% (63.7 100) Specificity = 70.4% (63.7 100) Specificity = 70.4% (63.7 100) Specificity = 70.4% (63.4, 9.4) Cut-off 2 + BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (74.9, 9.2) Cut-off 2 + BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (74.9, 9.2) Cut	Study	Identification tool		Population	Results	
Quality assessed: +and Depression Scale (HADS)(CIDI)cardiology (29.5%), respiratory (23.2%), gastroenterology (11.6%), Nephrology (14.9%), haematology (5.0%), radiation oncology (4.9%), endocrinology (3.3%)Cut-off ≥ 2 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Specificity = 20.5% (5.5, 32.4) Calculated] Specificity = 0.00% (0.52, 64.8) Calculated] Specificity = 70.00% (0.52, 64.8) Calculated] Specificity = 70.4% (70.4, 97.9) Calculated] Specificity = 70.4% (70.4, 93.2) Optimal cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (70.4, 93.2) Optimal cut-off ≥ 9 - BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity = 70.4% (70.4, 99.4) Catt-off ≥ 1 - BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 70.4% (82.4, 99.4) Catt-off ≥ 1 = BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 70.4% (82.4, 99.4) Catt-off ≥ 1 = BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 70.4% (82.4, 99.4) Catt-off ≥ 1 = BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 70.4% (82.4, 99.4) Catt-off ≥ 1 = BDI-PC AUC = 0.892 Sensitivity = 70.4% (82.7, 100) Specificity = 70.4% (82.7, 100) Specificity = 70.2% (26.			caselless	Heidelberg <u>Prevalence of depression</u> –	Specificity – 69% (64, 73) Cut-off ≥ 9– HADS Sensitivity – 85% (78, 95) Specificity – 76% (64, 73) Cut-off ≥ 10– HADS Sensitivity – 74% (62, 84)	
Upadhyaya1997HADSGMS- AGECATN = 72, attendees over 65years old at a medical centre (80 approached to take part in study)DepressionQuality assessed: ++UK, LiverpoolOptimal cut-off 8/9 Sensitivity 70% Specificity 87%UK, LiverpoolAge = 71.2, 37 males, 35 femalesOptimal cut-off 8/9 Sensitivity 70% Specificity 87%	Quality assessed:	and Depression		cardiology (29.5%), respiratory (23.2%), gastroenterology (11.6%). Nephrology (14.9%), haematology (7.9%), rheumatology (5.0%), radiation oncology (4.6%), endocrinology (3.3%) Mean age = 46.5 (SD = 12.9); 63.2% male 111 (36.8%) patients had chronic physical illness; mean duration = 9 years Australia, Sydney <u>Prevalence of depression</u> –	Cut-off ≥ 2 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Specificity - 20.5% (5.5, 32.4) Cut-off ≥ 5 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Specificity - 50.0% (35.2, 64.8) Cut-off ≥ 6 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 100% (not calculated] Specificity - 65.9% (51.9, 79.9) Cut-off ≥ 8 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity - 70.4% (70.4, 93.2) Optimal cut-off ≥ 9 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 75% (32.6, 100] Specificity - 70.4% (82.4, 99.4) Cut-off ≥ 11 - BDI-PC AUC - 0.892 Sensitivity - 50.0% (1, 99)	
females <u>Prevalence of depression – 20/72</u>	Upadhyaya1997 Quality assessed: +	HADS		65years old at a medical centre (80 approached to take part in study) UK, Liverpool	Depression Optimal cut-off 8/9 Sensitivity 70%	
T TO SICAL OPATHE OF ODDING	Physical health pro	blems		females		

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
Haworth 2007 Quality assessed: +	HADS	DSM-IV (SCID)	N=88, Age = 70 years Gender: 73 males, 15 females Heart failure patients, US <u>Prevalence</u> : 22/88 depression	Depression Cut off 6 Sensitivity 77.3% Specificity 89.4%	
Ibbotson 1994	HADS	DSM-III	13/88 MDD N=513, Median Age = 50-59,	Anxiety and Depression	
Quality assessed: +			Gender: 231 males, 282 females Cancer patients, UK Prevalence: 20/161	Optimal cut-off >14 - HADS Sensitivity - 80% Specificity - 76% PPV - 41%	
Berard 1998 Quality assessed: +	HADS	DSM-IV	N=100 Age = 50 years, Gender: 13 males, 87 females Cancer patients, South Africa Prevalence: 21/100	Depression: Cut off 8 Sensitivity: 0.71 Specificity 0.95	
Hall 1999 Quality assessed: +	HADS	DSM-IV	N=266 age:<75 years, gender: all female Women with early breast cancer, UK Prevalence: 99/266	Depression: Cut off 8 Sensitivity: 0.333 Specificity: 0.934	
Love 2004 Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HADS)	DSM-IV	N= 227 women with stage IV breast cancer involved in RCT; mean age = 52 y/o (SD = 9) Australia <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 74/227	Any depression (major and minor)Cut-off ≥ 7- HADS Sensitivity - 50% Specificity - 88% PPV - 67% NPV - 79% Cut-off ≥ 8- HADS Sensitivity - 46% Specificity - 94% PPV - 79% NPV - 78% Cut-off ≥ 9- HADS Sensitivity - 35% Specificity - 95% PPV - 76% NPV - 75% Cut-off ≥ 10- HADS Sensitivity - 24% Specificity - 96% PPV - 75%	

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
		caselless		NPV – 72% Cut-off ≥ 11– HADS Sensitivity – 16% Specificity – 97% PPV – 75% NPV – 71%	
				Major depression	
				Cut-off ≥ 7- HADS Sensitivity - 81% Specificity - 81% PPV - 24% NPV - 98% Cut-off ≥ 8- HADS Sensitivity - 75% Specificity - 85% PPV - 28% NPV - 98% Cut-off ≥ 9- HADS Sensitivity - 63% Specificity - 89% PPV - 29% NPV - 97% Cut-off ≥ 10- HADS Sensitivity - 50% Specificity - 92% PPV - 33% NPV - 96% Cut-off ≥ 11- HADS Sensitivity - 38% Specificity - 95%	
Strik 2001	Hospital Anxiety Depression Scale	DSM-IV (SCID-I)	N= 206 post myocardial infraction; 76.1% male	Any depression (major or minor)	
Quality assessed: +	Depression Scale	(3010-1)	Male – mean age = 59 (SD = 10.6); age range = 34 – 84 Female – mean age = 62.9 (SD = 10.7); age range = $38 - 78$ <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 39/206	Minor) Optimal cut-off ≥ 8 - HADS- Depression AUC - 0.85 Sensitivity 75.0% Specificity - 77.6% PPV - 32.1% NPV - 98.4%	
Tang 2004A Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety Depression Scale -Chinese version	DSM-III-R	N = 100 first acute stroke patients, recruited from consecutive admissions to the Stroke Recovery Unit.	Any depression Cut-off 5/6 Sensitivity – 0.88 Specificity – 0.51	

Hospital Anxiety a	nd Depression Scale			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/	Population	Results
		caseness	Age = 74 years, 55% male <u>Prevalence of depression – All</u> <u>disorders – 17/100</u> <u>MDD only – 8/100</u>	PPV - 0.27 NPV - 0.96 Cut-off 6/7 Sensitivity - 0.88 Specificity - 0.53 PPV - 0.28 NPV - 0.96 Cut-off 7/8 Sensitivity - 0.82 Specificity - 0.58 PPV - 0.29 NPV - 0.95 Cut-off 5/6 Sensitivity - 0.76 Specificity - 0.63 PPV - 0.30 NPV - 0.93
Tang 2004B Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety Depression Scale -Chinese version	DSM-III-R	N = 60 Chinese patients received rehabilitation after stroke <u>Prevalence of depression =</u> 14/60	All depressive disorders Optimal cut-off \geq 4 AUC - 0.838 Sensitivity - 86% Specificity - 78% PPV - 55% NPV - 93%
Walker 2007 Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety Depression Scale (total; depression subscale; anxiety subscale)	SCID	N= 361 cancer patients; 69.3% breast cancer, 12.5% prostate and bladder cancer; 78.9% had no active disease present 33.5% males Outpatients in clinic in Edinburgh <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 30/361	Major depressive disorderOptimal cut-off \geq 7 - HADS- depression subscaleAUC - 0.93 (0.88-0.98)Sensitivity - 90% (74-97)Specificity - 88% (84-91)PPV - 40%Optimal cut-off \geq 9 - HADS- anxiety subscaleAUC - 0.90 (0.85-0.95)Sensitivity - 87% (70-95)Specificity - 83% (78-86)PPV - 31%Cut-off \geq 13 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 90% (74-97)Specificity - 80% (75-84)PPV - 29%

Hospital Anxiety a	nd Depression Scale			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
				Cut-off ≥ 14 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 87% (70-95) Specificity - 83% (78-86) PPV - 31% Cut-off ≥ 15 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 87% (70-95) Specificity - 85% (81-89) PPV - 35% Cut-off ≥ 16 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 80% (70-0.95) Specificity - 90% (86-93) PPV - 41% Cut-off ≥ 17 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 77% (59-88) Specificity - 92% (89-95) PPV - 48%
Stafford 2007 Quality assessed: ++	Hospital and Anxiety Depression Scale - Depression subscale	DSM-IV	N = 193 patients hospitalized for percutaneous transluminal coronary angioplasty or coronary artery bypass graft surgery Male = 80.8% Mean age = 64.14 (S.D. = 10.37); age range 38 – 91 Australia, Geelong <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 54/193	Any depression HADS-Depression subscale AUC - 0.85 (S.E. 0.03) Cut-off \geq 5 - HADS- Depression subscale Sensitivity - 77.8% Specificity - 80.6% PPV - 60.9% NPV - 90.3% Cut-off \geq 8 - HADS- Depression subscale Sensitivity - 38.9% Specificity - 94.2% PPV - 72.4% NPV - 79.9%
Poole 2006 Quality assessed: +	Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale	DSM-III-R (SCID)	N = 115 patients from a Hypertrophic Cardiomyopathy clinic Male = 59.1% Median age = 43; age range = 23 - 63 England, London <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 18/115	Any depression HADS-Anxiety subscale AUC - 0.78 HADS-Depression subscale AUC - 0.94 Cut-off \geq 8 - HADS-Anxiety subscale Sensitivity - 96% Specificity - 79% PPV - 74% NPV - 96% Cut-off \geq 8 - HADS-

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
		cusciless		Depression subscale Sensitivity – 100% Specificity – 87% PPV – 67% NPV – 100%
				Cut-off \geq 10 - HADS- Anxiety subscale Sensitivity - 27% Specificity - 86% PPV - 55% NPV - 65%
				Cut-off \geq 10 - HADS- Depression subscale Sensitivity - 46% Specificity - 95% PPV - 69% NPV - 87%
				Optimal cut-off \geq 14 - HADS-total Sensitivity - 73% Specificity - 77% PPV - 74%
Golden 2007	HADS	DSM-IV (SCID-CV)	N = 88 outpatients at a hepatitis C service	NPV – 75% Any depression
Quality assessed: +			Male = 74%	HADS-D AUC - 0.78 (0.68-0.88)
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 28/88	Cut-off ≥ 8 - HADS-D Sensitivity - 52% (31-72) Specificity - 83% (71-91) PPV - 54 (33-74) NPV - 81% (70-90) Cut-off ≥ 8 - HADS-A Sensitivity - 88% (69-97) Specificity - 68% (55-79) PPV - 52 (36-68) NPV - 93% (82-99)
Reuter 2000 Quality assessed:	HADS	DSM-IV	N=188, Mean age = 54 years, gender: 137 males, 51 females	HADS Cut-off 17 Sensitivity = 0.79
+			Cancer patients, Germany	Specificity = 0.76
Aben 2002	HADS-D	DSM-IV	Prevalence: $14/188$	Daprossion: major
Aben 2002 Quality assessed: +	ΠΑυσ-υ	טיפע דעו	N = 202 (N=176 completed HADS-D); mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 male	Depression: major depressive and minor disorder (also gives results from major depressive

Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
			Stroke patients; Netherlands, Maastricht	disorder only)	
				Standard cut off ≥ 8	
			Prevalence of major and minor depression – 51/202	Sensitivity - 72.5% Specificity - 78.9%	
			nintor depression – 51/202	PPV - 50.9%	
				NPV - 90.5%	
41: 1:0000			N. 075 50	AUC - 0.83	
Akizuki 2003	HADS	DSM-IV	N = 275; mean age = 52 years; 164 female, 111 male	Depression: major depression and adjustment	
Quality assessed:			104 remarc, 111 marc	disorder	
+			Cancer patients; Japan, Tokyo		
			and Kashiwa	Standard cut off ≥ 8 Sensitivity – 96%	
			Prevalence of major	Specificity – 45%	
			depression and adjustment	PPV – 30%	
			disorder - 168/275	NPV - 63%	
Akizuki 2005	HADS (total)	DSM-IV	N = 295; mean age = 51; 164	Depression: major	
Quality assessed:			female, 131 male	depression	
+			Cancer patients; Japan	Optimal cut off ≥ 15 Sensitivity – 77%	
			Prevalence of major	Specificity 74%	
			depression - 53/295		

Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS)

Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS)							
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results			
Physical health pro	Physical health problems						
Aben 2002 Quality assessed: +	HDRS	DSM-IV	N = 202 (N=171 completed BDI); mean age = 68 years; 91 female, 111 male Stroke patients; Netherlands, Maastricht Prevalence of major and minor depression – 51/202	Depression: major depressive and minor disorder (also gives results from major depressive disorder only) Standard cut off ≥ 12 Sensitivity – 78.4% Specificity – 81.3% PPV – 58.8% NPV – 91.7% AUC – 0.86			
Weintraub 2006 Quality assessed:	HDRS	DSM-IV	N=148 with idiopathic PD receiving specialist care	Optimal cut-off 9/10 Sensitivity = 0.88			
+			Mean age = 71 years MMSE = 27	Specificity = 0.78 PPV = 0.52 NPV = 0.96			

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

Strik 2001	HDRS	DSM-IV (SCID-I)	N= 206 post myocardial infraction; 76.1% male	Any depression (major or minor)
Quality assessed: +			Male – mean age = 59 (SD = 10.6); age range = 34 – 84 Female – mean age = 62.9 (SD = 10.7); age range = 38 – 78 <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 39/206	Optimal cut-off \geq 12 - HDRS AUC - 0.89 Sensitivity 76.3% Specificity - 86.0% PPV - 40.7 NPV - 99.3
Community				
Stukenberg 1990 Quality assessed: +	Hamilton Depression Rating Scale (HDRS)	DSM-III-R (SCID)	N=177 community dwelling adults, over 55 years; Mean age = 67.4 (SD=7.20) Age range 56-88years 33% male	Any depression HDRS AUC – 0.85(SE .05)
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 27/178	

Major Depression Inventory (MDI)

Major Depression Inventory (MDI)					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results	
Community					
Forsell 2005 Quality assessed: +	MDI	DSM-IV	N = 1093; mean age = 42 years; 638 female, 455 male Community sample; Sweden, Stockholm	Depression: major depressive disorder Optimal cut-off 26 Sensitivity - 61% Specificity - 85%	
			Prevalence of depression = 81/1093	AUC - 0.83	

Montgomery-Asberg Depression Rating Scale (MADRS)

Montgomery-Asberg Depression Rating Scale (MADRS)						
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/	Population	Results		
		caseness				
Physical health pro	oblems					
Mottram 2000	Montgomery-	DSM-IV	N=414 mean age = 77 years,	Depression		
	Asberg		gender: 111 males, 303 males			
	Depression			Cut off 21		
	Rating Scale		Prevalence: 330/414			

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

	(MADRS)			Sensitivity = 0.875 Specificity = 0.991
Laska 2007 Quality assessed:	Montgomery- Asberg Depression	DSM-IV	N= 89; 100% aphasic stroke patients; 56% male; mean age = 74 y/o, age range 45-94	Depression Cut-off ≥ 10 - MADRS
+	Rating Scale (MADRS)		Aphasic stroke patients involved in a randomized placebo-controlled trial of myoclobemide	Sensitivity – 66% Specificity – 93% PPV – 29%
			<u>Prevalence of depression -</u> 7/60	

Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ)

Patient Health Questionnaire					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
Consultation					
Arroll 2003	Two screening questions from B-	Composite International	N=421	Depression – N – 29/421	
Quality assessed: +	PHQ (1) During the past two weeks, have you often been bothered by feeling down, depressed or hopeless?; (2) During the past month, have you often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing things?	Diagnostic Interview (CIDI)	Median age 46 years Primary care patients <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 29/421	2 items: Sensitivity - 97% Specificity - 67% PPV - 18% Depression only question: Sensitivity - 86% Specificity - 72% PPV - 18% Pleasure only question: Sensitivity - 83% Specificity - 79% PPV - 22%	
Arroll 2005	Two screening questions: (1)	Composite International	N=1025	Depression	
Quality assessed: +	during the past month have you often been bothered by feeling down, depressed or hopeless? (2) During the past month have you often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing things?	Diagnostic Interview	Primary care patients <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 29/421	Help question alone – Sensitivity – 75% (60, 85) Specificity – 94% (93, 96) Two screening questions alone – Sensitivity – 96% (86, 99) Specificity – 78% (76, 81) Either screening question plus help question – Sensitivity – 79% (65, 88) Specificity – 94% (92, 95)	

Patient Health Que	estionnaire			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
	Help question: Is this something with which you would like help with?			
Corapcioglu 2004 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	DSM-IV	N=1387, Age = 29 years Gender: 857 males, 530 females Primary care, Turkey Prevalence: 267/1387 (any depression) 91/1387 (MDD)	Depression: Sensitivity = 0.76 Specificity = 0.853 MDD: Sensitivity = 0.714 Specificity = 0.919
Diez-Quevedo 2001 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	DSM-III-R	N=1003 Mean age = 43 years, gender: 552 males, 451 females Medical and surgical inpatients, Spain Prevalence: 263/1003 (any depression) 148/1003 (MDD)	Any depression: Sensitivity = 0.89 Specificity = 0.87 MDD: Sensitivity = 0.84 Specificity = 0.92
Eack 2006 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	SCID	N= 50, mean age = 39 years, gender: all female Prevalence of depression: 17/50 Women in psychiatric services seeking treatment for their children	MDD TP = 9 FP = 9 FN = 5 TN = 27 Any depression TP = 11 FP = 10 FN = 6 TN = 22
Gilbody 2007 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	SCID	N=96, mean age = 43 years, gender: 22 males, 74 females Prevalence of MDD = 36/96 UK	MDD Sensitivity = 0.917 Specificity = 0.783
Hahn 2006 Quality assessed: +	Patient Health Questionnaire - Brief	CIDI (DSM- IV/ICD-10)	N = 204 chronically ill in- patients; 5.9% cardiovascular diseases, 8.8% orthopaedic diseases, 5.4% cancer, 18.6% endocrinologic disease, 53.4% pneumological disease Mean age = 49.6; age range	Affective disorder [single or recurrent major depression or dysthymia) Optimal cut-off ≥ 11- PHQ- Brief AUC – 0.844 (0.786-0.891) Sensitivity – 80%

Patient Health Ques	stionnaire			
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
Henkel 2004 Quality assessed: +	Two screening questions from B- PHQ (1) During the past two weeks, have you often been bothered by feeling down,	Composite International Diagnostic Interview (CIDI)	18-80 13 rehabilitation inpatient clinics in Germany <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 35/204 N = 448, of which 431 had an independent clinical diagnosis, (same participants as other Henkel 2004 study) mean age 48.98 Primary care patients	Specificity -75.7% PPV - 40.6% Any depressive disorder BPHQ two item Cut-off \geq 4 Sensitivity - 91.7%(82.7, 96.9) Specificity - 59.1% (53.8, 64.2) PPV - 31% (24.9, 37.7) NPV - 97.3% (94.1, 99)
	depressed or hopeless?; (2) During the past two weeks, have you often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing things?		Prevalence of depression (any) - 82/431 Prevalence of depression (major) -50/431 Prevalence of depression (dysthymia disorder) - 24/431 Prevalence of depression (minor) -54/431	Major depression BPHQ two item Cut-off \geq 4 AUC - 0.86 (0.81, 0.92) Dysthymia BPHQ two item Cut-off \geq 4 AUC - 0.87 (0.80, 0.94)
Henkel 2004 Quality assessed: +	Brief Patient Health Questionnaire (B- PHQ)	CIDI - ICD- 10 (and DSM- IV research criteria for minor depression)	N = 448, of which 431 had an independent clinical diagnosis, mean age 48.98 (same participants as study above) Primary care patients <u>Prevalence of depression (any) -</u> 82/431 <u>Prevalence of depression (major)</u> -50/431 <u>Prevalence of depression (dysthymia disorder) - 24/431</u> <u>Prevalence of depression (minor)</u> -54/431	Any depression Any depression according to ICD-10 AUC - 0.843 Any depression according to ICD-10 including minor depression (per DSM-IV research criteria) AUC - 0.783 Major depression AUC - 0.913 Dysthymia disorder AUC - 0.885 Minor depression AUC - 0.763 Standard cut-off ≥ 2 inc. 1a or 1b - B-PHQ Sensitivity - 79%

Patient Health Questionnaire						
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results		
				Specificity - 86% PPV - 55% NPV - 95%		
Kroenke2001, Spitzer 1999, Kroenke2003, Huang 2005 - All use same participants. Kroenke2001, Huang2005 - PHQ-9 Spitzer1999, Kroenke2003 - PHQ-2 Quality assessed: +	Patient Health Questionnaire 2 item version (PHQ-2)	DSM-III-R (SCID and diagnostic questions from the PRIME-MD conducted over the telephone by mental health professionals	N = 580 (6000 in total study) The total sample screened = 6000 of these 580 had a MHP interview within 48 hours and were used in the analysis. They did not differ from the total sample on any demographic or functional item. The total sample was recruited from 5 general practices, 3 family practices and 7 obstetrics-gynecology sites) <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 41/580	NullMDDSensitivity = 0.88 Specificity =0.88Major Depressive disorderPHQ-2Cut-off ≥ 1Sensitivity - 97.6%Specificity - 59.2%PPV - 15.4%Cut-off ≥ 2Sensitivity - 92.7%Specificity - 73.7%PPV - 21.1%Cut-off ≥ 3Sensitivity - 82.9%Specificity - 90.0%PPV - 38.4%Cut-off ≥ 4Sensitivity - 73.2%Specificity - 93.3%PPV - 45.5%Cut-off ≥ 5Sensitivity - 53.7%Specificity - 96.8%PPV - 56.4%Cut-off ≥ 6Sensitivity - 26.8%Specificity - 99.4%PPV - 78.6%AUCPHQ-20.93The AUC was greater forthose aged <60 (0.94 vs. 0.86)		

Patient Health Questionnaire					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
				Specificity – 65.4%	
				PPV - 36.9%	
				Cut-off ≥ 2	
				Sensitivity – 82.1%	
				Specificity - 80.4% PPV - 48.3%	
				Cut-off ≥ 3	
				Sensitivity – 62.3%	
				Specificity – 95.4%	
				PPV – 75.0%	
				Cut-off≥4	
				Sensitivity – 50.9%	
				Specificity - 97.9% PPV - 81.2%	
				Cut-off ≥ 5 Sensitivity – 31.1%	
				Specificity – 98.7%	
				PPV - 84.6%	
				Cut-off ≥ 6	
				Sensitivity - 12.3%	
				Specificity – 99.8%	
				PPV - 92.6%	
				AUC	
				PHQ-2	
				0.90 The AUC was lower for those	
				aged <60 (0.88 vs. 0.95)	
				MDD	
				Sensitivity = 0.88 Specificity =	
				0.88	
				Major Depressive disorder	
				PHQ-9	
				$Cut-off \ge 9$	
				Sensitivity – 95% Specificity 84%	
				Specificity – 84%	
				Cut-off ≥ 10	
				Sensitivity – 88%	
				Specificity – 88%	
				Cut-off ≥ 11	
				Sensitivity – 83%	
				Specificity – 89%	

Patient Health Questionnaire					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
				Cut-off \geq 12 Sensitivity - 83% Specificity - 92% Cut-off \geq 13 Sensitivity - 78% Specificity - 93% Cut-off \geq 14 Sensitivity - 73% Specificity - 94% Cut-off \geq 15 Sensitivity - 68% Specificity - 95%	
Lowe 2004A Lowe2004B - duplicate report Quality assessed: +	Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ)	DSM-IV (SCID)	N= 501; medical outpatients: 21% musculo-skeletal disease, 16% endocrine, nutritional & metabolic disease, 10% cardiovascular/circulatory disease, 7% gastrointestinal disease, 6% respiratory system disease Mean age = 41.7 y/o (SD = 13.8); 32.9% male 395 outpatients from Heidelberg University Medical Hospital 106 patients from 12 GPs in Heidelberg <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 66/501	Any depressionCut-off ≥ 9- PHQSensitivity - 87% (79, 92)Specificity - 76% (72, 80)Cut-off ≥ 10- PHQSensitivity - 81% (73, 87)Specificity - 82% (78, 86)Cut-off ≥ 11- PHQSensitivity - 79% (70, 85)Specificity - 85% (81, 89)Major depressionCut-off ≥ 11- PHQSensitivity - 98% (92, 100)Specificity - 80% (76, 83)Cut-off ≥ 12- PHQSensitivity - 95% (87, 99)Specificity - 84% (80, 87)Cut-off ≥ 13- PHQSensitivity - 88% (78, 95)Specificity - 87% (84, 90)	
Robison 2002 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-2 Whooley	CIDI	N=303 Age = 61 years gender: 88 males, 215 females Primary care, Hispanic population in US	Sensitivity = 0.92 Specificity = 0.44	
Whooley 1997	PHQ-2 (Yes or	DSM-III-	Prevalence: 67/303 N = 543	Major Depression	

Patient Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
Quality assessed: +	No scale)	Diagnostic Interview Schedule (DIS)	Patients visiting urgent care clinic Mean age = 53 (S.D. 14) Male = 97% USA, San Francisco <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 97/536	Two Questions: AUC – 82% (78-86) Sensitivity – 96% (90-99) Specificity – 57% (53-62)
Physical health pro		_		
Mohr 2007 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-2 Whooley	DSM-IV, SCID	N = 260 Age = 51 (S.D. 10.5) Multiple Sclerosis <u>Prevalence of depression –</u>	Major depression Two Questions: Sensitivity – 0.51 (0.38 – 0.63) Specificity – 0.98 (0.94 – 0.99)
Watnick 2005 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	DSM-IV	67/260 N=62, Age = 63 years, Gender: 42 males, 20 females Dialysis patients Prevalence: 12/62 (MDD)	PHQ-9 Cut-off 10 PPV= 0.71 NPV = 0.98 Sensitivity = 0.91 Specificity = 0.92
Williams 2005 Quality assessed: +	Patient Health Questionnaire 9 (PHQ-9) Patient Health Questionnaire 2 (PHQ-2)	DSM-IV	N= 316; 100% stroke patients Post-stroke depressed patients recruited from an RCT; non-depressed stoke patients from longitudinal cohort study <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 145/316	Major depression – N =145/316 PHQ-9 AUC – 0.96 Cut-off ≥ 10 – PHQ-9 Sensitivity – 90.6% (85.0, 96.1) Specificity – 88.6% (84.3, 92.9) Cut-off ≥ 3 – PHQ-2 Sensitivity – 83.0% (75.9, 90.2) Specificity – 83.8% (78.8, 88.8) Any depression PHQ-9 AUC – 0.96 Cut-off ≥ 10 – PHQ-9 Sensitivity – 77.9% (71.2, 84.7) Specificity – 95.9% (92.9, 98.9) Cut-off ≥ 3 – PHQ-2 Sensitivity – 77.9% (71.2, 84.7) Specificity – 94.7% (91.4, 90.1)

Patient Health Questionnaire				
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results
McManus 2005	Patient Health	DSM-IV	N=1,024 who have CHD	Depression
Quality assessed:	Questionnaire – 2 Two screening		Mean age = 67 years	PHQ-2
	questions: (1) during the past		Men 82%	AUC - 0.84 (0.82, 0.87)
	month have you often been bothered by		<u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 224/1024	Cut off point ≥ 3 Sensitivity – 39% Specificity – 92%
	feeling down, depressed or			PHQ-9
	hopeless?; (2) during the past month have you			AUC - 0.86 (0.84, 0.89)
	often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing			<i>Cut off point</i> ≥ 10 Sensitivity – 54% Specificity – 90%
	things?			Depression
	Patient Health			AUC - 0.84 (0.81, 0.86)
	Questionnaire - 9			Cut off point \geq 1 Sensitivity – 90% Specificity – 69%
Stafford 2007	Patient Health	DSM-IV	N = 193 patients hospitalized	Any depression
Quality assessed: ++	Questionnaire – 9 (PHQ-9)		for percutaneous transluminal coronary angioplasty or coronary artery bypass graft surgery	PHQ-9 AUC - 0.85 (S.E. 0.03) Cut-off ≥ 5 - PHQ-9
			Male = 80.8%	Sensitivity – 81.5% Specificity – 80.6%
			Mean age = 64.14 (S.D. = 10.37); age range 38 - 91	PPV - 62.0% NPV - 91.8%
			Australia, Geelong	
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 54/193	
Picardi 2005	PHQ-9	SCID	N=141, Age = 38 years, Gender: 62 males, 79 females	Sensitivity= 0.55 Specificity = 0.91
Quality assessed: +			Dermatology patients, Italy	
			Prevalence: 44/141 (any depression); 12/141 (MDD)	
Community		• 		
Adewuya 2006	PHQ-9	Mini International	N = 600, Age = 25, 301, Gender: males, 299 females	Sensitivity = 0.846 Specificity = 0.994
Quality assessed:		Neuropsychi	Genuer. marcs, 277 remaies	PPV = 0.750 NPV = 0.996

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

Patient Health Questionnaire					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
+		atric Interview (MINI)	Nigeria, student sample at university Prevalence: major depression - 13/600		
Han 2008 Quality assessed: +	PHQ-9	DSM-IV	N=1060, Age = >60 years Gender: No information South Korea, population based geriatric sample Prevalence: 175/1060 (any depression) 62/1060 (MDD)	Any depression: Cut-off 5 Sensitivity = 0.80 Specificity = 0.78	
Li 2007 Quality assessed: +	Patient Health Questionnaire 2 (PHQ-2)	DSM-IV	N=8, 205 adults aged ≥ 65 who participated in the National Epidemiologic Survey on Alcohol and Related Conditions. Mean age = 74.1, 29.5% Male. The participants were a subset of the NESARC sample which is representative of the U.S. non -institutionalised population. <u>Prevalence of depression –</u> 323/8205	Depression PHQ-2 Two Questions: Sensitivity - 100% Specificity - 77% (75.8, 78.0) AUC - 0.88 (0.87, 0.89) PPV - 14.3% (12.5, 16.1) Paper further reports criterion validity of the PHQ- 2 for different break downs of the population e.g. >85, Hispanic etc.	

Single Question

Single Question and two-item screens					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/	Population	Results	
		caseness			
Consultation					
Arroll 2005	Two screening questions: (1)	Composite International	N=1025	Depression	
Quality assessed: +	during the past month have you often been bothered by	Diagnostic Interview	Primary care patients <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 29/421	Help question alone – Sensitivity – 75% (60, 85) Specificity – 94% (93, 96)	
	feeling down, depressed or hopeless?; (2)			Two screening questions alone – Sensitivity – 96% (86, 99)	

Depression in chronic health problems: full guideline appendix 21

Single Question and two-item screens					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
	during the past month have you often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing things? Help question: Is this something with which you would like help with?			Specificity – 78% (76, 81) Either screening question plus help question – Sensitivity – 79% (65, 88) Specificity – 94% (92, 95)	
Howe 2000 Quality assessed: +	MHI-1	DSM-IV	N=100 age = 81 years, gender: 38 males 62 females. Older adults from UK primary care settings Prevalence: 30/100	Depression: Sensitivity = 0.67 Specificity = 0.60	
Means- Christensen 2006 Quality assessed: +	Screening question – 1. Have you lost interest in things? 2. Have you felt sad, empty or depressed?	Composite International Diagnostic Interview	N= 801; 37.8% male; mean age 41.49 y/o (SD = 12.48), age range 19 -79. Primary care patients in clinic in US <u>Prevalence of depression</u> - 41/115	Depression Sensitivity – 88% Specificity – 75% PPV – 19% NPV – 99%	
Mohr 2007 Quality assessed: +	Two screening questions (dichotomous): 1. During the past two weeks, have you been bothered by feeling down, depressed or hopeless? 2. During the past two weeks, have you often been bothered by little interest or pleasure in doing things	DSM-IV (SCID)	N = 260 (502 patients contacted). 73% female, age = 51 Patients with MS attending the KP medical care group US, California <u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 67/260	Depression Item one only Sensitivity – 75% Specificity – 94% PPV – 73% NPV – 91% Item two only Sensitivity – 75% Specificity – 94% PPV – 81% NPV – 91% Item one and two Sensitivity – 51% Specificity – 98% PPV – 90% NPV – 85% Item one or two Sensitivity – 99%	

Single Question and two-item screens					
Study	Identification tool	Comparator/ caseness	Population	Results	
				Specificity – 87%	
				PPV – 72%	
				NPV - 99%	
Pomeroy 2001	MHI-1 (Are you	ICD-10	N = 87 patients over the age	Depression	
	depressed?]		of 60 admitted to medical		
Quality assessed:			rehabilitation wards or	Sensitivity – 88.2%	
+			attending day rehabilitation	Specificity - 71.4% AUC - 0.88 (0.79-0.97)	
			facilities; 40% male, mean age 78.4 (SD – 7.7 yrs)	PPV – 42.9%	
			78.4 (SD - 7.7 yrs)	NPV - 96.1%	
			<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – 17/87	INI V - 90.170	
Robison 2002	Yale-1	CIDI	N=303 Age = 61 years gender:	Depression	
10013011 2002	1010-1	CIDI	88 males, 215 females	Depression	
Quality assessed:			so indies, 210 females	Sensitivity = 0.86	
++			Primary care, Hispanic	Specificity = 0.42	
			population in US	-r	
			Prevalence: 67/303		
Williams 1999	CES-D	DSM-IV	N=291 age: 58 years, gender:	Depression	
			93 males, 198 females	Sensitivity 0.85 Specificity	
Quality assessed:			Prevalence: 40/291	0.66	
+					
			US		
Physical Health Pro		ľ			
Vahter 2007	Are you	ICD-10	N = 134 inpatients from	Depression	
	depressed?		Multiple Sclerosis		
Quality assessed:				Sensitivity – 81%	
+			Mean age = 43.8	Specificity - 89% PPV - 94%	
			Duran law of Annuacion 70/77	NPV - 70%	
Kawase 2006	" A #0 12011	DSM-IV	<u>Prevalence of depression</u> – $72/77$		
Nawase 2000	"Are you depressed?"	D21VI-1 V	N = 305; mean age = 62	Depression: major or minor depression	
Quality assessed:	uepresseu:		Cancer patients; Japan	acpression	
+			Cancer patients, Japan	Standard cut-off ≥1	
			Prevalence of depression =	Sensitivity – 42%	
			26/305	Specificity – 86%	

Zung's Self-Rating Depression Scale

Zung's Self-Rating Depression Scale						
Study	Identification tool	Comparator	Population	Results		
consultation	consultation					
Okimoto 1982	Zung	DSM-III	N=55, 54 female 1 male, age= 69 years,	Depression		
Quality assessed:				TP = 13 FP = 7 FN=4 TN = 31		

Physical health pro	blems			
Leung 1998 Quality assessed: +	SDS - 20 item Quality assessed:	DSM-IV	N = 268 (N = 50 who completed DSM-IV; mean age = 54 years) Medical outpatients, patients	Depression: minor depressive disorder Cut-off ≥ 50 Sensitivity - 100%
			with chronic medical diseases. Participants had to have one of the following diseases: hypertension, diabetes, cerebrovascular accident, CVD, arthritis, COPD, renal diseases (without uraemia) or chronic liver diseases; Taiwan Prevalence of depression = 3/50	Specificity – 70.7% Cut-off \geq 55 Sensitivity – 66.7% Specificity – 90.2% Cut-off \geq 60 Sensitivity – 44.4% Specificity – 90.2%
Community		<u> </u>	37.50	
Adalberto 2006 Quality assessed:	SDS (20 item)	DSM-IV	N = 266; mean age = 37.4 years	Depression: major depressive disorder
+			Community sample; Colombia, Bucaramanga Prevalence of depression = 44/266	Standard cut-off ≥ 40 Sensitivity – 88.6% Specificity – 74.8% PPV – 41.1% NPV – 97.1% AUC – 0.901

References to included studies

Aben, I., Verhey, F., Lousberg, R., *et al* (2002) Validity of the Beck Depression Inventory, Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale, SCL-90 and Hamilton Depression Rating Scale as screening instruments for depression in stroke patients. *Psychosomatics: Journal of Consultation Liaison Psychiatry*, 43.

Adalberto, C-A. (2006) Validation of Zung's self-rating depression scale among the colombian general population. *Social Behavior & Personality: An International Journal*, *34*, 87-89.

Adewuya, A.O., Ola, B.A., & Afolabi, O.O. (2006) Validity of the Patient Health Questionnaire (PHQ-9) as a screening tool for depression amongst Nigerian university students. *Journal of Affective Disorders*, *96*, 89-93.

Arroll, B., Khin, N., and Kerse, N. (2003) Screening for depression in primary care with two verbally asked questions: cross sectional study. *BMJ*, 327, 1144-1146.

Arroll, B., Goodyear-Smith, F., Kerse, N., *et al* (2005) Effect of the addition of a "help" question to two screening questions on specificity for diagnosis of depression in general practice: Diagnostic validity study. *BMJ: British Medical Journal*, 331,

Arthur, A., Jagger, C., Lindesay, J., *et al* (1999) Using an annual over-75 health check to screen for depression: Validation of the short Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS15) within general practice. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 14,

Aydin, I. O. and Ulusahin, A. (2001) Depression, anxiety comorbidity, and disability in tuberculosis and chronic obstructive pulmonary disease patients: applicability of GHQ-12. *General Hospital Psychiatry.*, 23, 77-83.

Akizuki, N., Akechi, T., Nakanishi, T., *et al.* (2003) Development of a brief screening interview for adjustment disorders and major depression in patients with cancer. *Cancer*, *97*, 2605-2613.

Akizuki, N., Yamam M.D., Yamawaki, S. (2005) Development of an impact thermometer for use in combination with the distress thermometer as a brief screening tool for adjustment disorders and/ or major depression in cancer patients. *Journal of Pain and Symptom Management*, 91, 91-99.

Berard, R.M.F., Boermeester, F. & Viljoen, G. (1998) Depressive disorders in an out-patient oncology setting: prevalence, assessment and management. *Psycho-Oncology*, *7*, 112-120

Bhui, K., Bhugra, D., and Goldberg, D. (2000) Cross-cultural validity of the Amritsar Depression Inventory and the General Health Questionnaire amongst English and Punjabi primary care attenders. *Social Psychiatry and Psychiatric Epidemiology*, *35*,

Burke, W. J., Nitcher, R. L., Roccaforte, W. H., *et al* (1992) A prospective evaluation of the Geriatric Depression Scale in an outpatient geriatric assessment center. *Journal of the American Geriatrics Society.*, 40, 1227-1230.

Chaturvedi, S. K., Chandra, P. S., Prema, S. V., *et al* (1994) Detection of psychiatric morbidity in gynecology patients by two brief screening methods. *Journal of Psychosomatic Obstetrics and Gynaecology.*, 15,

Corapcioglu, A. and Ozer, G. U. (2004) Adaptation of revised Brief PHQ (Brief-PHQ-r) for diagnosis of depression, panic disorder and somatoform disorder in primary healthcare settings. *International Journal of Psychiatry in Clinical Practice.*, *8*,

Costa, D., Mogos, I., Toma, T. (1985) Efficacy and safety of mianserin in the treatment of depression of women with cancer. *Acta Psychiatrica Scandinivica Supplement*, 320, 85-92.

Costa, E., Barreto, S. M., Uchoa, E., *et al* (2006) Is the GDS-30 better than the GHQ-12 for screening depression in elderly people in the community? The Bambui Health Aging Study (BHAS). *International Psychogeriatrics*, *18*, 493-503.

Craven, J., Rodin, G. M., and Littlefield, C. (1988) The Beck Depression Inventory as a screening device for major depression in renal dialysis patients. *International Journal of Psychiatry in Medicine*, 18.

Cuijpers, P., Dekker, J., Noteboom, A., *et al* (2007) Sensitivity and specificity of the Major Depression Inventory in outpatients. *BMC Psychiatry.*, *7*, 39.

Cullum, S., Tucker, S., Todd, C., *et al* (2006) Screening for depression in older medical inpatients. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 21, 476.

D'Ath, P., Katona, P., Mullan, E., *et al.* (1994) Screening, detecting and management of depression in elderly primary care attenders I: the acceptability and performance of the 15 item Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS-15) and the development of shorter versions. *Family Practice*, *11*, 260-266.

De, C., Heeren, T. J., and Gussekloo, J. (2003) Accuracy of the 15-item geriatric depression scale (GDS-15) in a community sample of the oldest old. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 18.

Diez-Quevedo, C., Rangil, T., Sanchez-Planell, L., Kroenke, K. *et al.* (2001) Validation and utility of the Patient Health Questionnaire in diagnosing mental disorders in 1003 general hospital Spanish inpatients. *Psychosomatic Medicine*, *63*, 679-686.

Dutton, G. R., Grothe, K. B., Jones, G. N., *et al* (2004) Use of the Beck Depression Inventory-II with African American primary care patients. *General Hospital Psychiatry.*, *26*, 437-442.

Eack, S., Greeno, C., and Lee, B. J. (2006) Limitations of the Patient Health Questionnaire in Identifying Anxiety and Depression in Community Mental Health: Many Cases are Undetected. *Research on Social Work Practice*, *16*,

Ertan, F. S., Ertan, T., Kiziltan, G., *et al* (2005) Reliability and validity of the Geriatric Depression Scale in depression in Parkinson's disease. *Journal of Neurology, Neurosurgery & Psychiatry*, *76*, 1447.

Fernandez-San, M., Andrade, C., Molina, J., *et al* (2002) Validation of the Spanish version of the Geriatric Depression Scale (GDS) in primary care. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 17,

Forsell, Y. (2005) The Major Depression Inventory versus Schedules for Clinical Assessment in Neuropsychiatry in a population sample. *Social Psychiatry and Psychiatric Epidemiology*, 40.

Furlanetto, L., Mendlowicz, M., and Bueno, J. R. (2005) The validity of the Beck Depression Inventory-Short Form as a screening and diagnostic instrument for moderate and severe depression in medical inpatients. *Journal of Affective Disorders*, *86*,

Gilbody, S., Richards, D., & Barkham, M. (2007) Diagnosing depression in primary care using self-completed instruments: UK validation of PHQ-9 and CORE-OM. *British Journal of General Practice*, *57*, 650-652.

Goldberg, D.P., Gater, R., Sartorius, G.N., Ustun, T.B., *et al.* (1997) The validity of two versions of the GHQ in the WHO study of mental illness in general health care. *Psychological Medicine*, *27*, 191-197.

Golden, J., Conroy, R., and O'Dwyer, A. (2007) Reliability and validity of the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale and the Beck Depression Inventory (Full and FastScreen scales) in detecting depression in persons with hepatitis C. *Journal of Affective Disorders*, 100, 269.

Hahn, D., Reuter, K., and Harter, M. (2006) Screening for affective and anxiety disorders in medical patients: Comparison of HADs, GHQ-12 and brief-PHQ. *GMS Psycho-Social-Medicine*, 306, 1-11.

Hall, A., Hern, R.A. & Fallowfield, L. (1999) Are we using appropriate self-report questionnaires for detecting anxiety and depression in women with early breast cancer? *European Journal of Cancer*, *35*, 79-85.

Han, C., Ahn Jo, S., Kwah, J.-H., *et al.* (2008) Validation of the Patient Health Questionnaire-9 korean version in the elderly population: the Ansan Geriatric study. *Comprehensive Psychiatry*, 49, 218-223.

Harter, M., Woll, S., Wunsch, A., *et al* (2006) Screening for mental disorders in cancer, cardiovascular and musculoskeletal diseases. Comparison of HADS and GHQ-12. *Social Psychiatry & Psychiatric Epidemiology.*, *41*, 56-62.

Harter, M., Reuter, K., Gross-Hardt, K., *et al* (2001) Screening for anxiety, depressive and somatoform disorders in rehabilitation: Validity of HADS and GQH-12 in patients with musculoskeletal disease. *Disability and Rehabilitation: An International, Multidisciplinary Journal*, 23, 744.

Haworth, J. E., Moniz-Cook, E., Clark, A. L., *et al* (2007) An evaluation of two self-report screening measures for mood in an out-patient chronic heart failure population. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 22,

Hedayati, S. S., Bosworth, H. B., Kuchibhatla, M., *et al* (2006) The predictive value of self-report scales compared with physician diagnosis of depression in hemodialysis patients. *Kidney International.*, *69*, 1662-1668.

Henkel, V., Mergl, R., Coyne, J. C., *et al* (2004a) Screening for depression in primary care: will one or two items suffice? *European Archives of Psychiatry & Clinical Neuroscience.*, 254, 215-223.

Henkel, V., Mergl, R., Kohnen, R., *et al* (2004b) Use of brief depression screening tools in primary care: consideration of heterogeneity in performance in different patient groups. *General Hospital Psychiatry.*, *26*, 190-198.

Henkel, V., Mergl, R., Kohnen, R., *et al* (2003) Identifying depression in primary care: A comparison of different methods. *BMJ: British Medical Journal*, 326,

Hermanns, N., Kulzer, B., Krichbaum, M., *et al* (2006) How to screen for depression and emotional problems in patients with diabetes: comparison of screening characteristics of depression questionnaires, measurement of diabetes-specific emotional problems and standard clinical assessment. *Diabetologia*, *49*, 469-477.

Herrero, M. J., Blanch, J., Peri, J. M., *et al* (2003) A validation study of the hospital anxiety and depression scale (HADS) in a Spanish population. *General Hospital Psychiatry*, 25,

Howe, A., Bath, P., Goudie, F., *et al* (2000) Getting the questions right: An example of loss of validity during transfer of a brief screening approach for depression in the elderly. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 15.

Ibbotson, T., Maguire, P., Selby, P., *et al* (1994) Screening for anxiety and depression in cancer patients: the effects of disease and treatment. *European Journal of Cancer*, *30A*, 37-40.

Jongenelis, K., Gerritsen, D. L., Pot, A. M., *et al* (2007) Construction and validation of a patient- and user-friendly nursing home version of the Geriatric Depression Scale. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 22,

Kawase, E., Karasawa, K., Shimotsu, S. *et al.* (2006) Evaluation of a one-question interview for depression in radiation oncology department in Japan. *General Hospital Psychiatry*, 321-322.

Koenig, H. G., Meador, K. G., Cohen, H. J., *et al* (1992) Screening for depression in hospitalized elderly medical patients: taking a closer look. *Journal of the American Geriatrics Society*, *40*, 1013-1017.

Kroenke, K., Spitzer, R., and Williams, J. (2001) The PHQ-9: Validity of a brief depression severity measure. *Journal of General Internal Medicine*, *16*, 613.

Kroenke, K. (2003) The Patient Health Questionnaire-2: Validity of a two-item depression screener. *Medical Care*, *41*, 1292.

Kuptniratsaikul, V., Chulakadabba, S. & Ratanavijitrasil, S. (2002) An instrument for assessment of depression among spinal cord injury patients: comparison between the CES-D and TDI. *Journal of Medical Association Thailand*, *85*, 978-983.

Lam, C.L.K., Pan, P-C., Chan, A.W.T., *et al.* (1995) Can the hospital anxiety and depression (HAD) scale be used on Chinese elderly in general practice? *Family Practice*, *12*, 149-153.

Laprise, R., & Vezina, J. (1998). Diagnosistic performance of the Geriatric Depression Scale and the Beck Depression Inventory with nursing home residents. *Canadian journal of Aging*, *17*, 401-413.

Leentjens, A. F. G., Verhey, F. R. J., Luijckx, G. J., *et al* (2000) The validity of the Beck depression inventory as a screening and diagnostic instrument for depression in patients with Parkinson's disease. *Movement Disorders*, 15,

Leung, K. K., Lue, B. H., Lee, M. B., *et al* (1998) Screening of depression in patients with chronic medical diseases in a primary care setting. *Family Practice*, *15*, 67-75.

Li, C., Friedman, B., Conwell, Y., *et al.* (2007) Validity of the Patient Health Questionnaire 2 (PHQ-2) in identifying major depression in older people. *Journal of the American Geriatric Society*, *55*, 596-602.

Lincoln, N. B., Nicholl, C. R., Flannaghan, T., *et al* (2003) The validity of questionnaire measures for assessing depression after stroke. *Clinical Rehabilitation.*, *17*, 840-846.

Lincoln, N. B. and Flannaghan, T. (2003) Cognitive behavioral psychotherapy for depression following stroke: a randomized controlled trial. *Stroke.*, *34*, 111-115.

Love, A., Grabsch, B., Clarke, D., *et al* (2004) Screening for depression in women with metastatic breast cancer: a comparison of the Beck Depression Inventory Short Form and the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale. *Australian and New Zealand Journal of Psychiatry*, *38*, 531.

Lowe, B., Kroenke, K., and Grafe, K. (2005) Detecting and monitoring depression with a two-item questionnaire (PHQ-2). *Journal of Psychosomatic Research.*, *58*, 163-171.

Lowe, B., Spitzer, R., Grafe, K., *et al* (2004a) Comparative validity of three screening questionnaires for DSM-IV depressive disorders and physicians' diagnoses. *Journal of Affective Disorders*, *78*, 140.

Lowe, B., Grafe, K., Zipfel, S., *et al* (2004b) Diagnosing ICD-10 Depressive Episodes: Superior Criterion Validity of the Patient Health Questionnaire. *Psychotherapy and Psychosomatics*, 73.

Magni, G., Schifano, F., and de, L. (1986) Assessment of depression in an elderly medical population. *Journal of Affective Disorders*, 11.

McManus, D., Pipkin, S. S., and Whooley, M. A. (2005) Screening for depression in patients with coronary heart disease (data from the Heart and Soul Study). *American Journal of Cardiology.*, *96*, 1076-1081.

Means-Christensen, A. J., Sherbourne, C. D., Roy-Byrne, P. P., *et al* (2006) Using five questions to screen for five common mental disorders in primary care: diagnostic accuracy of the Anxiety and Depression Detector. *General Hospital Psychiatry.*, *28*, 108-118.

Mohr, D.C., Hart, S.L., Julian, L. *et al.* (2007) Screening for depression among patients with multiple sclerosis: two questions may be enough. *Multiple Sclerosis*, *13*, 215 -219.

Neal, R.M. & Baldwin, R.C. (1994) Screening for anxiety and depression in elderly medical outpatients. *Age and Ageing*, 23, 461-464

Okimoto, J.T., Barnes, R.F., Veith, R.C., *et al.* (1982) Screening for depression in geriatric medical patients. *American Journal of Psychiatry*, 139, 799-802.

Papassotiropoulos, A. & Heun, R. (1999) Screening for depression in the elderly: a study on misclassification by screening instruments and improvement of scale performance. *Neuro-Psychopharmacol and Biological Psychiatry*, 23, 431-446.

Parikh, R. M., Eden, D. T., Price, T. R., *et al* (1988) The sensitivity and specificity of the Center for Epidemiologic Studies Depression Scale in screening for post-stroke depression. International *Journal of Psychiatry in Medicine.*, *18*, 169-181.

Parker, G., Hilton, T., Bains, J., *et al* (2002) Cognitive-based measures screening for depression in the medically ill: The DMI-10 and the DMI-18. A*cta Psychiatrica Scandinavia*, *105*

Patterson, K., Young, C., Woods, S., *et al* (2006) Screening for major depression in persons with HIV infection: The concurrent predictive validity of the Profile of Mood States Depression-Dejection Scale. *International Journal of Methods in Psychiatric Research*, 15.

Persoons, P., Luyckx, K., Desloovere, C. *et al.* (2003) Anxiety and mood disorders in otorhinolaryngology outpatients presenting with dizziness: Validation of the self-administered PRIME-MD Patient Health Questionnaire and epidemiology. *General Hospital Psychiatry*, 25, 316-323.

Picardi, A., Adler, D.A., Abeni, D., *et al.* (2005) Screening for depressive disorders in patients with skin diseases: a comparison of three screeners. *Acta Demeto Venereologica*, *85*, 414-419.

Picardi, A., Abeni, D., Mazzotti, E., *et al* (2004) Screening for psychiatric disorders in patients with skin diseases: A performance study of the 12-item General Health Questionnaire. *Journal of Psychosomatic Research*, *57*,

Pomeroy, I., Clark, C., and Philp, I. (2001) The effectiveness of very short scales for depression screening in elderly medical patients. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, *16*,

Poole, N. and Morgan, J. (2006) Validity and reliability of the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale in a hypertrophic cardiomyopathy clinic: The HADS in a cardiomyopathy population. *General Hospital Psychiatry*, 28,

Reuter, K. & Harter, M. (2000) Screening for mental disorders in cancer patients – discriminant validity of HADS and GHQ-12 assessed by standardized clinical interview. *International Journal of Methods in Psychiatric Research*, *10*, 86-96.

Rinaldi, P., Mecocci, P., Benedetti, C., *et al* (2003) Validation of the five-item geriatric depression scale in elderly subjects in three different settings. *Journal of the American Geriatrics Society*, *51*, 694-698.

Robison, J., Gruman, C., Gaztambide, S., *et al.* (2002) Screening for depression in middleaged and older Puerto Rican primary care patients. *Journal of Gerontology*, *57*, 308-314.

Rovner, B.W. & Shmuely-Dulitzi, Y. (1997) Screening for depression in low-vision elderly. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 12, 955-959.

Scheinthal, S. M., Steer, R., Giffin, L., *et al* (2001) Evaluating geriatric medical outpatients with the Beck Depression Inventory-FastScreen for medical patients. *Aging & Mental Health*, *5*, 148.

Schein, R.L. & Koenig, H.G. (1997) The center for epidemiological studies-depression (CES-D) scale: assessment of depression in the medically ill elderly. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 12, 436-446.

Snijders, A. H., Robertson, M. M., and Orth, M. (2006) Beck Depression Inventory is a useful screening tool for major depressive disorder in Gilles de la Tourette syndrome. *Journal of Neurology, Neurosurgery & Psychiatry.*, 77, 787-789.

Spitzer, R.L., Kroenke, K., Williams, J.B. *et al.* (1999) Validation and utility of a self-report version of PRIME-MD: the PHQ primary care study. *JAMA*, 282, 1737-1744.

Stafford, L., Berk, M., and Jackson, H. (2007) Validity of the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale and Patient Health Questionnaire-9 to screen for depression in patients with coronary artery disease. *General Hospital Psychiatry*, 29,

Strik, J., Honig, A., Lousberg, R., *et al* (2001) Sensitivity and specificity of observer and self-report questionnaires in major and minor depression following myocardial infarction. *Psychosomatics: Journal of Consultation Liaison Psychiatry*, 42,

Stukenberg, K., Dura, J., and Kiecolt-Glaser, J. (1990) Depression screening scale validation in an elderly, community-dwelling population. *Psychological Assessment: A Journal of Consulting and Clinical Psychology*, 2,

Suthers, K. M., Gatz, M., and Fiske, A. (2004) Screening for depression: A comparative analysis of the 11-item CES-D and the CIDI-SF. *Journal of Mental Health and Aging.*, 10,

Tang, W. K., Ungvari, G. S., Chiu, H. F. K., *et al* (2004a) Screening post-stroke depression in Chinese older adults using the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale. *Aging & Mental Health, 8*,

Tang, W., Chan, S., Chiu, H., *et al* (2004b) Can the Geriatric Depression Scale detect poststroke depression in Chinese elderly? *Journal of Affective Disorders*, *81*,

Tang, W., Ungvari, G., Chiu, H., *et al* (2004c) Detecting Depression in Chinese Stroke Patients: A Pilot Study Comparing four Screening Instruments. *International Journal of Psychiatry in Medicine*, 34.

Thomas, J.L., Jones, G.N, Scarinci, I.C., *et al.* (2001) The utility of the CES-D as a depression screening measure among low-income women attending a primary care clinics. *International Journal of Psychiatry in Medicine*, *31*, 25-40.

Tuunainen, A., Langer, R. D., Klauber, M. R., *et al* (2001) Short version of the CES-D (Burnam screen) for depression in reference to the structured psychiatric interview. *Psychiatry Research.*, 103, 261-270.

Upadhyaya, A. & Stanley, I. (1997) Detection of depression in primary care: comparison of two self-administered scales. *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, *12*, 35-37.

Vahter, L., Kreegipuu, T. & Gross-Paju, K. (2007) One question as a screening instrument for depression in people with multiple sclerosis. *Clinical Rehabilitation*, *21*, 460-464.

Van Marwijk, H.W.J., Wallace, P., De Bock, G.H. *et al.* (1995) Evaluation of the feasibility, reliability and diagnostic value of shortened versions of the Geriatric Depression Scale. *British Journal of General Practice*, 45, 195-199.

Vargas, H., Matsuo, T., and Blay, S. (2007) Validity of the Geriatric Depression Scale for patients seen at general outpatient clinics. *Clinical Gerontologist*, 30.

Viinamaki, H., Niskanen, L., and Koskela, K. (1995) General Health Questionnaire and Beck Depression Scale as screening methods for psychiatric morbidity among the unemployed. *European Journal of Psychiatry*, *9*,

Wada, K., Tanaka, K., Theriault, G., *et al* (2007) Validity of the Center for Epidemiologic Studies Depression Scale as a screening instrument of major depressive disorder among Japanese workers. *American Journal of Industrial Medicine.*, *50*, *8*-12.

Walker, J., Postma, K., McHugh, G. S., *et al* (2007) Performance of the Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale as a screening tool for major depressive disorder in cancer patients. *Journal of Psychosomatic Research.*, *63*, *83-91*.

Watnick, S., Wang, P. L., Demadura, T., *et al* (2005) Validation of 2 depression screening tools in dialysis patients. *American Journal of Kidney Diseases*, *46*, 919-924.

Watson, L. C., Lewis, C. L., Kistler, C. E., *et al* (2004) Can we trust depression screening instruments in healthy 'old-old' adults? *International Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 19,

Weintraub, D., Oehlberg, K., Katz, I., *et al* (2006) Test characteristics of the 15-item Geriatric Depression Scale and Hamilton Depression Rating Scale in Parkinson disease. *American Journal of Geriatric Psychiatry*, 14,

Whooley, M. A., Avins, A. L., Miranda, J., *et al* (1997) Case-finding instruments for depression. Two questions are as good as many. *Journal of General Internal Medicine*, 12, 439-445.

Wilhelm, K., Kotze, B., Waterhouse, M., *et al* (2004) Screening for Depression in the Medically Ill: A Comparison of Self-Report Measures, Clinician Judgment, and DSM-IV Diagnoses. *Psychosomatics: Journal of Consultation Liaison Psychiatry*, 45, 469.

Williams, L. S., Brizendine, E. J., Plue, L., *et al* (2005) Performance of the PHQ-9 as a screening tool for depression after stroke. *Stroke*, *36*, *635-638*.

Williams, J.W., Mulrow, C.D., Kroenke, K., *et al.* (1999) Case-finding for depression in primary care: a randomised trial. *American Journal of Medicine*, 196, 36-43.

Yeung, A., Howarth, S., Chan, R., *et al* (2002) Use of the Chinese version of the Beck Depression Inventory for screening depression in primary care. *Journal of Nervous and Mental Disease*, 190, 94-99.

Zich, J. M., Attkisson, C. C., and Greenfield, T. K. (1990) Screening for depression in primary care clinics: The CES-D and the BDI. *International Journal of Psychiatry in Medicine*, 20, 259-277.

Zoger, S., Svedlund, J., and Holgers, K. M. (2004) The Hospital Anxiety and Depression Scale (HAD) as a screening instrument in tinnitus evaluation. *International Journal of Audiology*, 43,